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Hornby PLC Annual Report & Accounts 2012

The Group's principal business is the development, production

and supply of hobby and toy products. The Group distributes its products
through a network of specialist and multiple retailers throughout the

UK and overseas

Financial Highlights

Revenue Underlying Operating Profit  Dividend per Share

£64.5m +2% £5.3m +2%  3.7p (26%)
2011: £63.4m 2011: £5.2m 2011: 5.0p
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Underlying
Profit before taxation

£4.5m +2%
2011: £4.4m

Profit after taxation

£3.7m +15%
2011: £3.2m

Basic earnings per share

9.5p +14%
2011: 8.3p

Reported
Profit before taxation

£4.0m (3%)
2011 £4.1m

Profit after taxation

£3.2m +11%
2011: £2.9m

Basic earnings per share
8.2p +9%
2011: 7.5p

Frank Martin, Chief Executive of Hornby, commented,

"Despite the backdrop of a challenging market, Hornby 1s making encouraging progress QOur ability to broaden
our product and distribution base will enable us to mitigate to some extent any short term weakness in our
traditional hobby sectors We are pleased that sales of our London 2012 merchandise are gathering momentum
We expect this unique license opportunity to contribute posttively to profifs in the short term and, through the
increased distribution that we gain as a result of our involvement with London 2012, to provide an ongoing legacy
benefit in substantally increasing our presence 1n mass market retad outlets ”




4 Hornby > Annual Report and Accounts 2012 > Chairman's Statement

Chairman's Statement

Overview

The management team has continued to
{ocus on delivering a long term business
stralegy for the Group The aim s to be

the most successful model, hobby and
coliectable toy company in the world The
year under review has nat been without

its challenges but our strategy to diversify
our business both by product sector and
geographical market has stood us m good
stead in the UK, challenging market
conditions have constrained our sales, whilst
in manland Europe we have seen our sales
grow considerably as we consolidate our
position as an important suppher to the
model railway markets in Continental Europe

The Group is well positioned to benzht from
the incremental sales that will be generated
in the UK by Lhe London 2012 Games and
also to continue to grow our mainland
European businesses

Corporate Governance

Good corporale governance prowdes a
framework for delivening the objectives

of the company and 1s fundamental to a
sound decision making process It supporis
executive management in achieving the
maximum performance for the business
The Board will continue to focus on
strenglhening governance and comphance
procedures We welcomed the introduction
of the Financial Reporting Council's UK
Corporate Governance Code {the Code)
and {he Corporate Governance Report this
year Is structured so that we can report our
corporate governance arrangements and
practice against its five sections Maintaining
good corporate governance s a key priority
and | am pleased to introduce our Corporate
Governance Report setling oul how we
complied with the Code during the year

There have been no changes to the
composition of the Board during the year
The annual evaluation of the Board has
considered the balance of skilis, experience,
independence knowledge of the Company,
its dwersity, including gender, how the Board

interacts together as a umii, and considers
that the present structure and composition
of the Board to be effectve for the size of the
orgamsation

All non-execulive direclors are advised of

the likely ime commitments at appomtment
The abibly of indwvidual directors to allocate
sufftcient ime 1o the discharge of therr
responsibililies 15 considered as part of the
directors’ annual evaluation and development
process overseen by the Chasrman The
Board has formal and informal procedures to
monilor its performance both as indwiduals
and as a Board

In the current uncertain economic
environment management of risk remains

a key focus for the Board The Board has

in place a robust process for identifying

the major risks facing the business and for
developing appropriate policies to manage
those risks The Board reviews the major
nsks and any mitigating actions required on a
i-annual basis

Through the Board and the Audit Commuttee
we retain good wisibility of the 1ssues and
challenges faced by management and the
work Lo address them In the year to March
2012, for example, we have completed a
thorough review of the Group s policies and
prccedures to ensure comphance with the
2010 UK Bribery Act

I was appointed Chairman of Hornby just
before Chnislmas 2000 Al that time,

we were an overwhelmingly UK focused
business, and although we had started to
builld supplier relationshups in China, we

still retaned manufacturing activities in

the UK Eleven years later, Hornby has
become a truly international company, with
supplier operations in China and India, and

a collection of World and European brands
which have substantially broadened the base
of our operations and reduced the short-
term risks associated with over reliance on a
single market This year, 2012, marks another
potentially game-changing development of
our brand ‘reach’ as Hornby products feature

strongly in the collectables’ ranges of the
London 2012 Games

| have much enjoyed being part of this
transformation, particularly working with my
Board colleagues and the talented executive
leam who have actually delwvered major
success and change That said | consider
Lthal it 1s now time to hand-over the Chair

lo a new parr of eyes and hands capable

ol consolidating thss lransformation and
steering the business to ever greater success
in {he [uture It s therefore my inlention to
stand-down fram the Board not later than
next year s AGM This will leave sufficient
time for us to lind a sutable successor and
arrange the necessary transiions In the
coming months | will be consulting with
major shareholders and together with my
Board colleagues managing a professional
and comprehensive setection process | wilt
of course, keep all shargholders informed of
any major developments in this process

Finally 1 would like to thank our Chief
Executive Frank Martin and lhrough lum, all
our slaff, for therr commitment to growing
the business, and ensuring that fulure return
15 maximised

to sharehefd

Charrman

8 June 2012
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Chief Executive's Report

The Group’s principal business is the design, development, production and
supply of hobby and toy products The Group distributes its products through

a network of speciahist and multiple retailers throughout the UK and overseas
The Group markets its products under a number of strong brands well known in
their respective markets. These brands include Hornby, Scalextric, Electrotren,
Lima, Jouef, Rivarossi, Arnold, Airfix, Humbrol and Corgi.

Financial Review

2012 2om
Revenue £64 4m  £63 4m
Underhying profit before
tax * £4 5m £4 4m
Gross profit margin 48 3% 46 2%
Underiying profit before
tax margin " 70% 7 0%
Reported profit before
tax margin 6 2% 65%
Undenying basic
earnings per share * 9 48p 8 34p
Statutory basic earnings
per share 819p 7 50p
Net debt £6 3m £6 1m

Stated before amortisation of intangibles and net foreign
exchange adjustments on intercompany loans

Consolidated revenue for the year ended
31 March 2012 was £64 4 million, an
increase of 2% compared to lhe previous
year s £63 4 million

Full year gross profit margin was 48 3%
(2011 - 46 2%) Theincrease in gross profit
margin was primarlly a resull of changes

in the preduct mix of sales in favour of
higher margin model railway products This
reflected improvements in the performance
of our supply chain Overheads increased
year on year, due pnmarily to the effect of
vanable selling costs increasing in our UK
concessions and European subsidianes as
a result of higher levels of sales, and with
incremental promotional activity associated
with the London 2012 Games

Pre-tax profit before amorlisation of
intangibles and net foreign exchange

adjusiments on intercompany loans
(hereafter refcrred to as underlying
pre-tax profits) was £4 5 mellion (2011 -
£4 4 milhon) (sce note 1) Basic earnings
per share calculated on underlying pre-tax
profit (hereafter referred to as underlying
basic earrungs per share) were 9 48p
(2011 - 8 34p) Statulory pre-tax profit
was £4 0 million {2011 - £4 1 miflion) and
statutory basic earmings per share were 8 19p
(2011 - 750p)

Taxation at £0 8 mitlion (2011 - £1 3 mullion)
was 21% ol reporied profit before tax

(2011 - 31%)} Thus included a prior year
deferred tax adjustment of £0 3 million,
relating to the provision for unrealised profit
in stock The laxation figure excluding this
adjustment was 27%

Core Group inventortes reduced during the
year However, al the year end we were
carrying stocks of London 2012 merchandise
valued at £3 3 million 1n order to service

the sales io be made in the run-up to and
during the Games This resulted in an overall
increase in stocks al the year end We expect
this position to unwind as the London 2012
inventory 15 sold Net debt as at 31 March
2012 was £6 3 million (2011 - £6 1 muliion)

Dividend

This has been another year in which

trading has been chatlenging Last year the
dividend payment was maintained at the
tevel of the previous year notwithstanding
a reduction in earnings per share The Board
recommends that the total dividend for the
current year be re-ahgned to the Group's

lang term policy of paying 50% of earnings
The tolal dividend has been calculated afler
excluding the impact of the prior year tax
beneht referred to above and results in a
recommended dividend of 3 7p per ordinary
share (2011 - 5 Op} Aninterim dividend of
17p has already been paid, so the proposed
final dimidend will be 2 Op tn hne with the
noliflication made in last year's Report and
Accounts to this effect, payment of the final
dvidend will be made afler the Group s peak
working capital requirement for the year has
passed The final dividend will Lherelore be
paid on 21 December 2012 to shareholders
on the register at 23 November 2012

Banking Facilities

The Group has banking faciiities of

£17 5 mullion in the UK These facilities
comprise a £7 5 milhon amortising Term
Loan which expires in July 2014 and a

£10 mulhion Secured Money Markel Loan
which expires in August 2015 The Group
also has additional facihities of £2 5 million In
place in its European subsidiaries Borrowings
in the year ended 31 March 2012 peaked

al £15 6 million The Group remained
comfortably within all of its covenants during
the year

Business Overview

This has been a further year of challenging
economic conditions However we have
made good progress in a number of key
areas in mamnland Europe improved supply
chain performance enabled our European
business 1o report increased sales and a
satisfactory profit Trading conditions in our
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Chief Executive's Report (continued)

UK home markel continued to be difficult
We are now in the run-up to the London
2012 Games and demand for our London
2012 merchandise 1s geowing strongly

We are expecting good sales performance
over the conung months, and the expanded
distribulion base thal we have opened up as
a result of London 2012 will stand us in good
stead Lo continue 1o develop sales beyond
the Games The development of the new
Corgi’ Toys” range and the launch of a range
of products based on the rapidly growing
license "Olly the Litlle While Van will help
to underpin our mass-marke! distribution
beyond 2012

Hornby sources the majority of its products
in China and India, via third-party contract
manufacturers During the year supphes
from the Group's largest suppher in China
improved considerably and additional
sources were brought on strearn We
continue to work closely with our largest
supplier and expect that this relalionship wall
continue to the benefit of both parties for
many years Lo come

All purchases from our Chinese suppliers are
either in US or Hong Kong Dollars Itis the
Group's policy to enter into forward currency
contracts in anticipation of purchases for up
to 12 months i the future The Group retains
intellectual property rights in its producls and
controls all sales of its products

United Kingdom

The challenging trading conditions in the
UK resulted i full-year sales in our UK
substdiary being 4% below the previous
year at £45 5 mullion (2011 - £47 3 mullion)
Against trus difficull background, underlying
profit before tax fell to £3 4 million
compared to £4 5 million the previous year
Reported profit before tax was £3 O million
(2011 - £4 3 mullion) This result includes
export sales to third parbies of £6 4 million
(2011 - £6 5 million)

Sales via all our channels of distribution were
below the previous year, with Lhe exception
of our concessions chain and our direct
marketing channel The reduction in sales
reflects weak consumer confidence generally
and caution on the part of reladers in respect
of inventory purchases

Sales of Hornby model raslways were broadly
sirmifar to the previous year However we

had some notable successes in terms of new
product introducttons In particular our newly
tooled Brighton Belle five car set launched to
critical acclaim In addition, cur new Flying
Scotsman locomotive followed the success in
the previous year of Lhe Tornado locamotive
Both these locomotives are built to a ligh
standard of authenticity whilst achieving a
compebitive price point We will continue

to develop this new markel sector which s
attuned to the more challenging cconomec
conditions which we face

Sales of Scalextric were below the previous
year as a resull of lower consumer demand
and cautious buying behaviour amongst cur
retallers However, with the launch this year
of our Star Wars based Scalextnic range and
Lhe introduction of a number of products
celebrating the 50th anniversary of the
James Bond franchise we are confident that
we can rebuild our Scalextnc volumes

Sales of Airfix were shightly below the
previous year after a number of years of gocd
growth Qur Airfix product development
programme continues apace and we expect
our recently announced 148 scale military
range {o provide a strong platform for Airfix
sales

Corgi sales benefitted from the London 2012
programme and were ahead of the previous
year In parlicular, the London 2012 branded
bus and taxi ranges were very successful and
we expecl sales of these and similar items to
conlinue 1o grow duning the current financial
year

Continental Europe

Our subsidiaries in mainland Europe together
made good progress, benelitling directly
from the improved performance of our supply
chain Sales via our European subsidianes

in {otal were 21% above the previous year

at £16 2 million {2011 - £13 4 million) Qur
subsidianes in maintand Europe contributed
an underlying profit before tax of £11 millian
compared with an underlying loss before tax
of £42,000 in the previous year Reported
profit before tax was £1 0 rmilion (2011 - loss
£0 2 mithon) All our European subsidiaries
returned a profit in the year and we are
particularly pteased with the progress Lhat
has been made in Germany

Our strong European brands continue to
attract increasing support from the model
ratlway communities in each of our key
territories Across Europe in 2011/12 we
won no less than ten separate ‘'model of the
year’ awards, recewving at leasl one award

in each territory where we have a subsidiary
company Thisis an important third party
endorsement of our strategy to build our
presence In these markets

The current macro economic 1ssues
surrounding the euro zone continue to be a
cause for concern Continued weakness in
the Euro will have a negative impact on the
level of profit of the European busiress

America

Sales in Hornby America were higher at

34 4 milhion (2011 - $4 2 million), producing
a profil before tax of $83,000 (2011 - loss
$69,000) Upon translation into Sterling,
sales were £2 7 milhon (2011 - £2 7 milhon)
with a profit before tax of £52,000 (2011 -
loss £44,000) In addition Hornby Hobbies
n the UK benefitted from a gross margin
contribution of £411,000 (2011 - £397,000)
generated on sales made to Hornby
America, which has the effect of increasing
significantly the overall contnibution to Group
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profil of our US operation Further good
progress was made dunng the year in Hornby
Amenca in reducing working capiial and
overheads

Product Development

Qur product development programme
continues to be a key driver of our business
We conlinue to Increase our resources in
this area in order to cope with the addibional
demands of our subsidiaries and the increase
in product calegories We were delighted
that at the London toy fair in January 2012
we were awarded three separate "Best

New Toy” awards, for our Corgi toys range,
our Scalextric Star Wars producls and

our London 2012 Pictogram figurines No
other company received as many awards

I addition to the ongoing development

of our traditional hobby-based ranges we
are working for the fulure on a number

of technology based mitiatives which of
successfully executed will broaden further
our appeal and markel reach

Qutlook

Consumer confidence in 2il our major
markets continues to be weak We will
continue to review our overhead base in
order where possible to align costs with

the current environment Qur ability Lo
broaden our product and distribution base
will enable us to mitigate to some extent

any short term weakness in our traditional
hobby sectors The sales of our Londan 2012
merchandise are gathering momentum and
we expect this unigue hicense opportunety Lo
contribute positively to profits in the short
term and, through the increased distnibution
that we gain as a result of our involvement
with London 2012, to provide an ongoing
legacy benefit in substantially increasing our
presence in mass market retail outlets In
order to benefit from this increased presence
followng London 2012 we have developed

a number of new ranges with entry-tevel
price points ranging from £2 1o £9 99 The
first of these ranges 1s a senes of collectable
pin-badges based on the Moshi Monsters
license This development arises directly from
owr experience of distnbuting the London
2012 collectable pin badges By applying this
knowledge Lo the hugely successful Moshi
Monsters license we are leveraging our
product development expertise and securing

continued mass market distribution We also
have high expeclalions of success for our
range of Corgi “Toys” This range 1s designed
around the everyday vehicles that use Lhe
roads of the UK and indeed mainland Europe
There 1s currently a gap in the market for
this type of collectable series and we have
receved a very posttive response from our
retail customers First deliveries of this range
will be in-store in Seplember Other ranges
soon to reach the market include “Olly the
Little White Van”, which s currently the
highest rating chuldren's TV senes on CITV

There s no doubl that there will continue
to be pressure on consumer confidence for
some time to come However we continue
to innovate and to seek new commeraial
opportunities i order to counter the effects
of the macro-economic climate in which we
are operaling

Frank Martin
Chief Executive

8 June 2012




8 Hornby > Annual Report and Accounts 2012 > Directors and Corporate Information

Directors and Corporate Information
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Directors’ Report

The directers submit their Annual Report together with the audited
consolidated finangal statements for the year ended 31 March 2012

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company s a holding company registered in England No
01547390 with a Spamsh branch and has six operating subsicianies
Hornby Hobbies Limited in the United Kingdom, Hornby America Inc
n the USA Hornby Espafia 5 A in Spain, Hornby alia sl in ltaly,
Hornby France S A S in France and Hornby Deutschland GmbH in
Germany Homnby Plc s a public limited company incorporated and
operaling in the United Kingdom its registered office 1s set out on
page 8

The Group 1s principally engaged in the development, design
sourcing and distribution of hobby and interactive home
entertainment products

BUSINESS REVIEW
The Group 5 business review along with future developments are
in¢cluded in the Chief Execulive s Report

The principal risks and uncertainties facing the Group and the
Group's Corporale Governance Statement are set outin the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 17 and 18

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results for the year ended 31 March 2012 are set outin the
Group and Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on

page 29 Revenue for the year was £64 4 million compared to

£63 4 million iast year The profit for the year attributable to equity
holders amounted to £3 2 mdlion (2613 - £2 9 mithon) The position
of the Group 1s set ocut in the Group and Company Balance Sheet on
page 30

Anintenm dividend was declared in the year of 17p per ordinary
share amounting to £0 7 mullion (201 - £ 7 million}

The directors recommend a final dividend of 2 0p (2011 - 3 3p)

per ordinary share amounting to £0 8 milhion (2011 - £13 mullion)
payable on 21 December 2012 to those shareholders on the Register
at 23 November 2012

This represents a total dvidend paid in respect of the year ended 31
March 2012 of 3 7p per ordinary share (2011 - 5 Op)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (KPIs)

The directors are of the opimon that the KPls are revenues gross
margins, underlying profit before tax, earnings per share and cash
generation, the information for which is available in these financial
staterments and summansed on the financial highlights section at
the beginning of this report The Group maintains a robust planning
system with individual targets for subsidiaries in terms of growth

and profits The Board monitors progress against plan on a regular
basis adjusting future ohjectives annually in line with current
circumstances

RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT
The Board considers that research and development into new
products continues {o play an imporlant rofe in the Group's success

All RED costs tncurred in the year have been charged to the
Staterment of Comprehensive Income and are as set out innote 4

PROPERTY VALUES

In the opimion of the directors, and given current planning use
approvals, there 1s no significant difference between the book amount
and the current market value of interesis in fand and builldings

Land and buildings are valued according to the provisions of IAS 16's
cost modet Assets are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation
and simpairment

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the year the Group made donations of £14,232 (2011 -
£21,250) for chantable purposes to include the Theatre Royal
Margate (£10,000) There were no pelitical donations in the year
(2011 - £ai))

DIRECTORS

The persons who were directors during the year are listed below

Neif A Johnson, aged 63 was onginally appainted a non-executive
director on 1 July 1998 On 22 Becember 2000 he assumed the
responsibihties of Chairman He served for five years as a member
of a Prime Mirister s Advisory Panel and 1s currently a member of a
Minsstry of Defence Adwvisory Board He sits on a number of pnivate
company Boards and Trusts, 1s Chairman of Motability Operations
Group Pl¢, Umeco Plc and Yule Catto & Co Plc

Frank Martin, aged 60, was appointed Chief Executive on 3 January
2001 Frank was previously Chief Executive of Humbrol Limited,
and formerly Managing Director of Denby Pottery Limited and
Group Marketing Director of Hasbro (LK) Limited His conditions of
employment include a notice perod of one year to be given by the
Company and of six months to be given by him

Andrew J Morns, aged 49, was apponlied Group Finance Director
on 26 Novermber 2007 Andrew was previously CFO of Speedo
International and formerly Finance Director, Africa Glaxo Smuthkline
plc His conditions of employment include a notice period of one year
to be given by the Company and of six months to be given by tum

Nigel M Carnington, aged 56, was appointed a non-executive
director on 1 December 2007 Nigel s currently Rector and Chief
Executive of University of the Arts London and a member of the
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Directors’ Report (continued)

board of a number of chanities He was formerly a corporale lawyer
and Managing Partner at Baker & McKenzie and Managing Director
and Deputy Charrman of Mclaren Group Limited

Mark E Rolfe, aged 53 was appointed a non-executive director on

1 January 2008 After qualifying as a charlered accountant wilth
Coopers and Lybrand Mark joined Gallaher Group plc 1n 1986, where
he was Finance Director for seven years retiring 10 2007 He s a non-
executive director of The Sage Group Plc, Barratt Developments Plc
and Debenhams Plc, and Chairman of Lane Clark & Peacock LLP

The interests of the directors in the shares of the Company and in
options granted over such shares are disclosed in the Direclors’
Remuneration Report on pages 23 and 24

The number of Board meetings held during the year and attendance
by the directors 1s sel out on page 12

DIRECTORS' INDEMNITIES

The Company maintams hability insurance for its directors and
officers during the financial year and up to the date of approval of
the Annual Report and Accounts The Company has also provided
an indemnity for its directors and the secretary which s a qualifying
thurd parly indemnity provision for the purposes of the Companies
Act 2006

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDINGS

The Company has been notified that at close of business on 25 May
212 the following parties were interested in three per cent or more
of the Company s ordinary share capital

Number of

Ordinary Percentage
Shareholder Shares held
Phoenix Asset Management Partners
Limited 4,027,573 1028
Electra Quoted Partners 2,995,150 765
P J Wood 2 821,500 720
New Landfinance Holdings Limited BVi 1815514 464
J 4 Hosking 1,711,434 437
Aberdesn Asset Management 1,198,140 306
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Group's financial instruments, other than derivatives, comprise
barrowings, some cash and hguid resources, and various items, such
as trade receivables, trade payables, etc that arise directly fromits
operations The Group's financial llablitses comprise borrowings,
trade payables, cther payables and finance leases, the main purpose
of which 1s to raise finance for the Group’s operations The Group
also has financial assets comprising cash, trade and other recevables

The Group also enters into denvatives transactions (principally
forward foreign currency contracts) The purposé of such
transactions is to manage the currency risks ansing from the Group's
operations The Group has a foreign exchange (FX) coltar in place

to munimise nisk on translation of Euro denorminated intercompany
loans

It 1s, and has been throughout the penod under review, the Group s
pclicy that no speculative trading in inancial instruments shall be
underlaken

PERSONNEL POLICIES

It 15 the policy of the Group to follow equal opportunity employment
practices and these include the fult consideration of employment
prospects for the disabled

Applhcations for employment by disabled persons are always fully
considered, bearing in mind the aptitudes of the applicant concerned
IL1s the policy of the Group that the training career development and
promotion of disabled persons should, as far as possible, be identical
wilh that of other employees Arrangements are made, wherever
possible, for retraining employees who become disabled to enable
thern to perform work identified as approprale to Ltheir aptiludes

The Group places importance on the contnbutions to be made by
all employees to Lthe progress of the Group and aims to keep them
informed by the use of formal and informal meetings

CREDITOR PAYMENT POLICY

The Group has agreed a vanety of payment terms with its suppliers
Itis and will remain the general policy of the Group that payments
to a supplter are made 1n accordance with the general conditions of
purchase agreed with that supplier, providing the supplier complies
with all refevant terms and conditrons and also that the invoice 1s
presented in a timely fashion

The average creditor payment penod for the main trading subsidhary
at 31 March 2012 was 39 days (201 - 40 days) The Company itself
does not trade and therefore has no external trade payables

SHARE CAPITAL

The share capital of the Company compnises ordinary shares of 1p
each, each share carries the nght to one vote at general meetings

of the Company The authorised and 1ssued share capital of the
Company, together with movements in the Company’s 1ssued share
capital 1s shown in note 21

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
A resolution to re-appoint the auditors, PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP,
will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

The notice of Annual General Mecting 1s important and requires your
immediate attention If you are in any doubt as to what action to
take in relation to the Annual General Mecting you should consult
appropnate independent adwisers

The notice of the Annual General Meeting is set out on pages 68 to
7

Resolution 3

A final dividend can only be paid after the shareholders at a general
rmeeting have approved it A final dividend of 2 O pence per ordinary
share of 1 pence each in the capital in the Company s recommended
by the directors for payment to shareholders whe are on the register
at the close of business on 23 Novernber 2012

Resolution 10

Under section 551 of the Companies Act 2006 (the *Act’), the
directors may allot unissued shares or grant nights over such shares
only if authorised to do so by shareholders This resolution will give
the directors autharily to allot new ordinary shares in the capilal of
the Company or grant nights o subscribe for or convert any secunty
into, shares in the Company, up to an aggregate norminal amount of
£130,000, which represents approximately 33% of the Company's
tssued ordinary capital as at 7 June 2012 (being the iatest practicable
date pror to the publication of this notice) This authority renews
that given at last year s Annual General Meeting and will expire

at 11am on 25 July 2017 The directors do not have any present
inlention of exercising the authonty granted by this resolution except
in connectron with the Company's share schermes However, it 1s
considered prudent to maintain the flexibiity that this authority
provides

Under the guidelines of the Assooiation of British Insurers on
authority to allot shares companies may seek basic authority to allot
new shares in an amount of up to one-third of the existing 1ssued
share capital and Lhis request will be regarded as routine under
guidehnes

Resolution 1

it 1s proposed to renew the authorily to the directors to allot eguity
securities for cash without first being required to offer such securities
o exising members This will include the sale for cash on a non pre-
emptive basts of any shares which the Company holds in treasury
The authonty witl be imited to the sssue of shares for cash up to an
aggregate nominal amount of £19 000 representing approximately
5% of the 1ssued ordinary share capital of the Company as at 7 June
2012 (being the {atest practicable date prior to the publication of this
notice} The authonty sought at the Annual General Meeting will
expire at the conclusion of the next Annual General Meeting of the
Company

The directors do not intend to1ssue more than 7 5% of the 1ssued
ordinary share capital of the Company in any rolling three year

period without prior consultation with the Institutional Investrment
Committee Members will note that this resolution also relates to the
sale of treasury shares

Resolution 12

The Company Is secking authority to purchase up lo approximately
10% of the Company’s 1ssued ordinary share capital at, or between
the mnimum and maximum prices specified in this resolution As at
7 June 2012 (being Lhe latest practicable date prior to the publicalion
of this nolice) the tetal number of options to subscribe for shares in
the Company was 847,500 (approximalely 2 2% of the Company's
issued ordinary share capital and approximalely 2 4% of the
Company's issued ordinary share capital if the full aulhonity proposed
by resolution 12 was used and the shares purchased were cancelled)
This power would be used only after careful consideration by the
directors, having taken into account market condilions prevailing at
that ime, the investment needs of the Company its opportunities
for expansion and its overall financial position The directors would
exercise the authonty to purchase ordinary shares only i they
constdered it to be in the best interest of the members and they
believe that the effect of such purchases will be to increase earmngs
per share

The Company (Acquisition of Own Shares) (Treasury Shares)
Regulations 2003 came inta force on 1 December 2003 These
regulations allow shares repurchased by the Company to be held as
treasury shares rather than being cancelled Treasury shares may be
cancelled resold for cash or used {or the purpose of employee share
schemes but all nghts attaching to them, including voting rights and
any nght to receve dividends are suspended whilst they are held in
treasury The autherity to be sought by thi< resolution 1s intended

to apply equally to shares to be held by the Company as treasury
shares The Company currently holds no treasury shares

The authority sought at the Annual General Meeting will expire at
the earlier of the date which falls eighteen moanths from the date this
resolution 1s passed and the conclusion of the next annual general
meeting of the Company

ned yn behalf of the Board

Westwood
Margate
Kent CT9 4JX

8 jurne 2012
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Corporate Governance Report

UK Corporate Governance Code

The Company welcomes the introduction of the new UK Corporate
Governance Code published 1in 2010 with this reporl being structured
to report corporate governance arrangements and practices against
the requirements of the Code

Throughout the year ended 31 March 2012 the Company has been in
compliance with the Code provisions

LEADERSHIP

The Board is responsible for the long term success of the Company
and 1s respoansible to shareholders for ensunng that the Group is
appropnately managed and achieves its objectives The Board is also
responsible for the system of corporale governance strategy nsk
management and financial performance The Company s governance
siruciure is consislent with the leadership panciples sel cut in the
Code

Neil Johnson has led the Board since December 2000

The Board beleves its current structure 1s appropnale lor the scale of
the business and to enable the Group 1o be managed elficiently

During the year the Board comprised the Chairman, Chief Execulive
Finance Director and two non-executive directors

Chairman and Chief Executive

The roles of Chairman and Chief Executive are separate and Lhere
15 a clear division of responsibility The Chairman is responsible for
leading the Board and ensuring its effectiveness The Chairman and
the Board are satishied that effective commumication, principally by
the Chsef Executive and Group Finance Director, 1s undertaken with
the shareholders

The Chief Executive 1s responsible for running the business and
ensuring that accurate, timely and clear information 1s presented at
maonthly Board meetings or when appropriate

Senior Independent Director

The Board has appointed N M Carrington to the role of Senior
Independent Director This role provides a point of contact to those
shareholders who wish to raise 1ssues with the Board, other than
through the Chairman

The Board mornutors the performance of the Group as a whole by

»  Engaging at Board meetings with, and challenging the CEO and
Group Finance Director, as appropriate, on the financial and
operating performance of the Group and external 1ssues matenial
to the Group s prospects

«  Evaluating progress towards the achievement of the Group's
financial and business objectives and plans

*  Monitoring the significant nsks facing the Group

EFFECTIVENESS

Board composition

The Beard contains a range of complementary skills, experience

and knowledge that 1s considered appropriate for the scale of Lhe
business The biographical details of all Board members are prowded
on pages 9 and 10

The Board considers the non-executive directors wt o served duning
the year to be independent of management and free from any
business or other relationship which could interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgement Code provision B 1 2 requires non
FTSE 350 companies to have at leas! two independent non-executive
directors

N A Johnson has served on the Board for more than thirteen

years and has been its Chaurman for eleven years In line with the
Combined Code the Semor Independent Director N M Carnington,
has undertaken a rigorous review of the cflectiveness of the
performance of the Chairman as well as a review of hus contribution
lo the Board, based on a questionnaire and discussson with other
mernbers of the Board, and has concluded thal the Charrman
continues to operate effectively and to execute commitment to the
role

During the year ten Board meetings were held All directors attended
all meelings

The Board has adopted a formal schedule of matters specifically
reserved to it for decisions including the determination of the
stralegy the approval of business plans, budgets, acquisitions and
disposals major capital purchases, Board appointments, accounting
policies and treasury arrangements

The Board also delegates specific responsibilities o committees as
described below The Board meets monthly and monitors progress
aganst plan al each meeting

The directors have the authonity of the Board to oblain external legal
or other iIndependent professional advice in the furtherance of their
duties at the Company’s expense All direclors have access Lo the
advice and services of the Company Secretary, who 1s responsible
for ensuring Board procedures are followed and applicable rules

and regulations are complied with The execulive directors have all
received approprate training for thewr appointment to the Board of a
listed company The non-execulive directors bring a broad expertise
to the Board N A Johnson, N M Carnngton and M E Rolie are all
expernenced company directors

Appointments to the Board

Nominations Committee
There have been no appointments to the Beard during the year
ended 31 March 2012 Appointments to the Board require the Board's
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aulhonisation and are conducted by the Nominations Comnutiee
The Neminations Commuttee comprises the Chairman executive and
non-executive direclors

The duties of the Norminations Commuttee are available from the
terms of reference and include regularly reviewing the structiure, size
and compasition required of the Beard and making recommendations
o the Board with regard to any changes, giving full consideration

to succession planning for directors and other senior exccutives
identifying and nominating candidates to hil board vacancies and
evaluating the balance of skifls, knowledge and expenence on the
Board before an appointment 1s made The lerms of reference are
avaitable on the Company's website, covering the authority delegated
to it by the Board

Tha potential candidates are interviewed by either the Norminations
Commitlee or 2 panel appointed by that Committee An appointment
requires the final approval of the Board pnor to an offer being
forwarded

Information and professional development

The Chief Executive 1s responsible for ensuring that directors
receive accurate, iimely and clear informalion Management has
an obligatron to provide such information but directors should seek
clanfication or amphfication where necessary

The Chairman s responsible for ensuring that directars conlinually
update their skills and the knowledge and familianty with the
Company required to fulfil their role Resources are available

on request to develop and update the directors’ knowledge and
capabilities

Performance Evaluation

During the year a performance evaluation of the Board and its
committees has taken place by way of a performance evaluation
questionnaire The results of this questionnaire were summarnisedin a
report which was presented to the Board

In the year under review the report identified no areas of concern

Re-election

N A Johnson, having served for more than thirteen years, will retire
and offer himself for re-election at the Annual General Meeting and
annualty thereafter in accordance with the Combined Code

The Company's Articles of Association currently require one third of
the directors to retire by rotation at each Annual General Meeting
Thereby M E Rolfe and A J Morns offer themselves for re-election

at the forthcoming Annual General Meeting In accordance with

the Combined Code the non-relinng direclors have conducted a
review of M £ Rolfe and A J Morns's contribution to the Board and
the Charrman can confirm that they continue to be effective directors
and to execute commitment to the role

Audit Committee and Auditors

The Audit Commiitee compnises N M Carrington and M E Rolfe
M E Rolfe became Chairman of the Audit Committee on 28 July
2008 He s a Fellow of the Instilute of Chartered Acceunlants

in England and Wales and 15 considered by the Board to have
recent and relevant financial experience, as required by the Code
N M Carringlon has a wide range of business experience, which s
evidenced by his biography set out sn the Directors’ Report

The Committee meets at least three limes a year and the Chairman,
Chief Executive, Finance Director Company Secretary and other
managers atlend by invitation The Group's Auditors atlend meetings
and have direct access to the Committee The terms of reference are
avatlable on the Company's website, covering the authonty delegated
to« by the Board

The Audit Commuittee's terms of reference include all matlers
indicated by the Combined Code The terms of reference are
considered annually by the Audit Committee and are then referred to
the Board for approval

The main duties of the Commuittee, set out in1ts terms of reference,
are to

= Make recommendations on the appomtment and remuneration
of the externat auditors and moniter their performance

*  Review the nature and scope of the work to be performed
by Lhe external auditors, the resuits of their audit work and
management s responses

*  Manitor the independence of the external auditors and
recommend policy for any non-audit services they provide to
ensure that their independence is not compromesed

+  Rewiew and advise the Board on the Company’s interim and
annual financial statements and related announcements its
accounting policies and on the control and retigations of its
financial and business risks

= Review and adwvise the Board on the effectiveness of the
Company's internal control environment, including its
procedures for detecting fraud and whistle blowing’ and for the
prevention of bribery

Activity during the year

During the vear, three Audit Committee meetings were held All
members attended all meetings The Commuttee met privately
wilh the external auditors without executives present, and with the
Finance Director

The Commuittee reviewed the Company’s interim and annual financial
statements and related announcements along with a report from the
external auditors setting out the findings from their audit work
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The Comruttee has adopted a specific policy on auditor
independence setting oul restnictions on specific non-audit activitics
such as bookkeeping, payroll services and advocacy, and procedures
and authonty levels for audit and non-audd fees The authority levels
beyond which prior approval from the Audit Committee 1s required
are set as 11 for the audit/non audit {ee ratio Hornby believes that

it receves particular benefit from the external audilors’ advice on
potential acquisitions and the tax consequences thereof, given its
audilors detailed knowledge of the Group The Board considers
alternative prowiders If practical and seeks confirmation prior to
engaging services that independence will nol be compromised

In the current financial year the audit fee was £123,000 and the non-
audil fee (principally tax services) was £69,000, well withun the 11
ralio

To assess the effectiveness of the external auditors, the Commuttee
reviewed therr fulfiiment of the agreed audit plan, the robustness and
perceptiveness of the auditors in their handhing of key accounting
and audil judgements, the content of therr letler to management

on control matters and adherence to service slandards set out In
Hornby s Audit Charler policy There are no contractual restrictions
on the chaice of the Committee as to external audit and having
considered the services provided by the current external auditors,
PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, their independence and knowledge

of the Group, the Committee has recommended tc the Board the
reappointment of the auditors at the Annual General Meeting in July
2012 In reaching this decisson the Commuttee has taken info account
the tenure of the auditors and considered whether there should be a
fufl tender process The Committee also had regard to the likelthood
of a withdrawal of the auditor from the market

The Comimutlee considered reporis from Group financial
management on the operation of, and 1ssues ansing from the

Group s internal control procedures The Committee monitored

the effectiveness of the Group's nsk management process which
considered the key rnisks, both financial and non-finanaial, facing the
Group and the effectiveness of the Group's controls to manage and
reduce the impact of those risks

The Committee considers annually the need for an ifternal audit
functron, but currently believes that this 1s not justified given the size,
nature of the Group and a programme of visits to Hornby locations
carried oul by semor Group financial management

Arrangements exist for stafi of the Group tc raise concerns, in
confidence, about possible impropneties in malters of financial
reporting or other matters The Group has a code of conduct
outhmng the business standards to which all Company personnel
must adhere which further reinforces existing whistle-blowing policy
and procedures

Control Environment

The Board has put in place an orgamsational structure with clearly
defined and understoad hnes of responsioility and delegation of
authonly The Board promotes a strong control environment with a
strong cthical chimate

REMUNERATION

The Remuneration Committee comprises N M Carrington and
M E Rolie N M Carrington is the Charman of the Remuneration
Commillee

The Commultee met three times during the year with all mermbers
being oresent The Commiltee 1s responsible for establishing formal
and transparent procedures for determining policy on executive
remuncralion and advising the Board on executive remuneration
and in particular for ensuring that executive remuneratton packages
are suflicient Lo attract, retain and motivate executive directors of
the reqguired qualily whilst avoiding paying more than necessary

it also endeavours to establish performance related elements of
remunerabtion which align the interests of the directors with those
of the shareholders No director is involved in deciding his own
remuncration and Lhe Board itself determines the remuneration of
the non-execulive directors The terms of reference are avarlable on
the Company s websile, covering the authonty delegaled to it by the
Board

Furlher detad of directors remuneration s provided in the Directors’
Remuneration Report

ACCOUNTABILITY

The Board 1s commulted to providing shareholders with a clear
assessment of the Company's financial position and prospects This
1s achieved through the Annual Report and Accounts and through
other penodic financial statements and announcements

internal Control and Risk Management

The Board 1s responsible for the operation and effectiveness of the
Group's system of internal controls and nsk management There s
a continuous process for identifying, evaluating and managing the
significant risks the Group faces This process has been in place
threughout the year under review and up 1o Lhe date of approval of
the annual repoert and accounts, and comphes fully with the Turnbuill
guidance

The Audit Commuttee considered reports from Group financial
management on the operation of, and 1ssues ansing from the Group s
tnternal control procedures The Audit Committee monitored the
effecliveness of the Group's risk management process, which
considered the key risks, both financial and non-financial, facing the
Group and the effectiveness of the Group’s controls to manage and
reduce the impact of those nisks
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The Board regularly reviews the effectiveness of the Group's system
of internal control The Board s monitoning covers all controls,
including financial, operational and complhance controls and nsk
management il 1s based principatly on reviewing reports from
management to consider whether significant nisks are identified,
cvaluated, managed and cortrolled and whether any significant
weaknesses are promptly remedied and indicate a need for more
extensive monitoring

The internal control syslems are designed Lo meet the Group's
particular needs and the nisks to which it 1s exposed and by their
nature can only provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against misstatement or loss During the year, the Group continued
to lake action to enhance lhese conirol syslems, based upon its own
process iImpravement initiatives and auditors recommendations

The Audit Commutlee reviews and reports Lo the Board on the
effectiveness of the Group's systems of internal control on an on-
going basis duning the year and no significant weaknesses have been
identified

RELATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company communicates regularly with ils institutional
shareholders and encourages communication with private investars
through the Annual General Meeting

N M Carnington s the senior independent non-executive director
The senior independenl non-executive director welcomes direct
discussion with shareholdors

The executive directors update major shareholders at institutional
visits and analyst presentations immedsately after the interim and
final announcements The Chairman attends a selection of these
meetings The meetings faciitate open discussion and direct face-to-
face conlact and Lhe views of sharcholders are reported to the Board
by the Chairman and Chief Executive

The Board uses the Annual General Meeting as an occasion for
communication with its shareholders All proxy votes are counted

by the Company's registrars and lhe voling on each resolution 1s
made avaiable to the meeting Directors of the Company and the UK
subsidiary attend the meeting to respond to specific questions
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BUSINESS MODEL AND STRATEGY

The Group compnses a number of high quality premium brands spread across different product categories within the hobby and collectable
Loy market The Group has the opportunily to develop a number of new hcense properlies within the existing brand structure (e g Olly the
Little White Van, Mosht Monsters, Star Wars') as well as developing other distribution opportunities (e g Breyer horses) We arc also
conlinuing to grow the European train brands and lo explore opporlumties in developing markets The nature of Lthe model railway business
worldwide 1s that products are largely country-specific This requires high levels of knowledge and expertise in each individual market Thus
represents a significant barrier to entry However, Lhe Group has this infra-structure in place and 1s therefore in a strong competitive position
Production of model railway items 15 a labour intensive process The Group sources all of its model railway products from China Although
labour rates in China are increasing, the Group continues o operaie at a cosl advantage Lo competitors producing in fugher cost regions such

as Eurgpe
Company Mission and Strategic Objectives

Vision/Mission To ba the most successful model hobby and collectables toy company in the world
Strategic objectives *  To deveiop high margin branded product

* To develop complimentary product categonas for organic development

« To broaden globat reach through addiional markets and products

+ To add complimentary distnbution lines to accelerate growth

Bustness Model
Internally developed branded intellectual property

Product categories Modet Trains Slot car racing Kits/Paints Dre-cast
Brands Hornby Scalextnc Aurfix Corgi

Electrotren Supersiot Humbrol

Lima

Rivarossy

Jouef

Arnold
9% share of revenue 48% (2011 - 45%) 26% (2011 - 30%) 14% (2011 - 15%) 12% (2011 - 10%})
Supply source China China India/UK China
Product development UK/Spain UK UK UK
Internal
Licensing strategy To utiise appropnate third party licenses to enhance the consumer proposition
Distrbution Subsidianes 3rd party distnbutors

UK Rest of the world

Spain

ltaly

France

Germany

USA
Routes to market Independent toy/model stores

Key accounts/Major retallers

3rd party internet retarlers

Concession stores (UK only}

Direct to consumer

3rd party branded intellectual property distnbuted by Hornby

Brands Breyer { Model Horses) Temtory UK

Slot-it {Slot car racing) Termtory USA

% share of revenue This currently represents less than 1% of revenue
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Strategy

The continued diversification of our product categonies, the legacy distribution opporturitics coming out of the London 2012 games and the
opporlumties to continue to grow our inlernational business, provide a strong platform for future growth in addiion we continue Lo extend

aur brand reach into complimentary categories such as the Moshi Monsters pin badge range Our spread of brands/categories and our wide
geographic reach provide a broad and stable base from which to trade during difficull economic imes and as Lhe opporlumilies arise to

continue Lo grow our business

IDENTIFICATION OF PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
The Board has the primary responsibility for identfying the major nisks facing the Group and developing appropriate policies to manage

those risks The Board has compleled a nsk assessment programme in order toidentify the major risks and has reviewed and determined any
miigaling actions required as set out below The risk assessment has been completed in the contexi of the overall strategic objectives and the

business model of the Group which has been set out above

Principal nsks and uncertainties
Risk Description

impact/Sensitivity

Mitigation/Comment

UK market dependence The UK market represents a
significant part of Group revenue,

61% in 2012 (2011 - 84%)

The Group 1s exposed to a
downtum 1n the performance of the
brands in the UK as wellas to a
downturn in the UK economy

The Board's strategy continues
to be to expand overseas sales
The acquistions of the brands
Airfix, Humbrol Corg, Electrotren,
Rivarossi Lima Amold and Jouef
have provided the Group with

a significant share of the model
railway, model and die-cast
markets 1 continental Europe, with
the objective of faciltating further
growth

Market conditions The Group's products are sold in
the man to its retail customers
The performance of the market 15
affected by the general economic
climate, everall consumer and
retaller confidence, and the

changing retal landscape

The Group has competition in the
model raillway, slot racing, model
kais, die cast and pant markets

The Group performance 1s
impacted by the global macro-
economic environment and
changes in the wider retall
landscape

Loss of market share to increased
competitor activity would have a
negative impact on the Group's
resulls

In reviewing the future forecasts

for the business the directars
consider reasonable changes in
macro-economic and associated
market conditions recognising the
potential for a negative impact on
the Group's results The Group has
credit msurance i place to mitigate
against any spectfic retal customer
default The Group formulales its
business strategy, meluding the
website and direct to consumer
channels, based on the changing
retal dynamics

In many of cur markets the Group
enjoys a strong market position
due to the continued development
of our brands Brands are
extremely mportant in the model
sector with market entry costs
being prohibitive

Exchange rates The Group purchases goods In
Hong Kong dollars and US dollars
and selis in € sterling, Euros

and US dollars and s therefore
axposed to exchange rate
fluctuations

Significant fluctuations n exchange
rates to which the Group 1s
exposed could have a matenal
adverse effect on the Group’s
future resufts

The Group continues to hedge
short term exposures by
establishing forward currency
purchases using fixed rate and
participating forward contracts
up to twelve months ahead It

18 deemed impractical to hedge
exchanga rate movemnents beyond
that pencd Transaction nsk on
intercompany loans 1s managed
through a foreign exchange collar
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fusk Descniption

Impact/Sensitivity

Mstigation/Comment

Supply Chan The Group purchases goods, in
the main, from third party Chunese
supphers due to the significant
cost advantage when compared to
products manufactured i Europe
The pnncipal supplier to the Group,
Sanda Kan, 1s owned by Kader
Hoidings Company Limited a

Hong Kong based company with
interests in the model rail sectors in

Europe/US

The Group does not have exclusive
aangements with its suppliers
and there I1s a nsk that competiton
for manufactunng capaciiy could
lead 1o delays in mtroducing new
products or sercing existing
demand

Input cost escalation In China
could reduce or remove the
Group's pnoing advantage and
impact margins

The Group 15 continuing to develop
and dversdy its supplier portiolio
which includes a supplier in India
and closely monitors production
through an increased number of
locally based employees (who also
ensure the maintenance of qualty
standards)

Product compliance The Group s products are subject
to comphance with toy salety

legislation around the workd

Faflure to comply could lead to &
product recall resulting in damage
10 Company and brand reputation
along with an adverse impact on
the Group s results

Robust internal processes and
procedures active monitonng

of proposed legislation and
invelvernent in policy debate and
lobbying of the relevant authonties

Liquidity Insufficient financing te meet the

needs of the business

wWithout the appropnate level of
financing it would be ncreasingly
difficult to execute the Group’s
business plans

The Group has a fixed term loan
agreement expmng in July 2014
{£7 & milion at 31 March 2012)
and a revolving credit {acility (£10
milion expinng August 2015) The
Group s policy on iguidity nisk 1s to
maintain adequate faciities to meet
the future needs of the business

Main control procedures

Management establishes control policies and procedures in response
to each of the key risks identified Control procedures operate to
ensure the integrity of the Group's financial statements, designed to
meet the Group's requirements and nisks identified in each wea of
the business Control procedures are docurnented where appropnate
and reviewed by management and the Board on an on-going basis to
ensure control weaknesses are miligated

The Group operates a comprehensive annual planning and budgeting
system The annual plans and budgets are approved by the Board
The Board reviews the management accounts at its monthly
meelings and financial forecasts are updated monthly and quarterly
Pecformance agamst budget is moritored and where any significant
dewviations are identified appropniate action s taken

Corparate Social Responsibility

The Board considers the social, environmental and ethical matters
pertinent to the Group, and will review items of sigmificance

where appropniate The risk assessment procedures in place are
designed to highlight any key areas of concern including health and
safety considerations, employee recruitment and retentron and
environmental issues, with controls put 1n place as necessary

The Group 1s pro-active in workmg with all suppliers to ensure
compliance with the International Council of Toy Industries (ICT1}
Code of Business Practices to include child and forced labour

working conditions hours of work, pay, non-discrimination and

health and safety Compliance 1s managed through an annual audit

process

Environmental Responsibility

The Group believes that protection of the environment 1s an

integral part of good practice and that it satisfies itself that all of

its operations are conducted with reasonable proper regard for the
environment it 1s commutted to maintaining, and wherever possible
improving, the quality of this environment both for the people who
work in the Group, and for the wider commumty now and in the
future The Group seeks Lo make the most effective and efficient use
of all resources, encouraging all members of the Group to develop an
ecologically sound approach to their work

Share Capital

Details of our Share Capilal structure can be found on page 10 of the

Directors report and in Note 21
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Going Concern

A review of Group bustness activities and future outlook are set out
on pages 5 1o 7 of the Chief Executive’s Reporl The financial position
of the Group, its cash flows and lquidily position are shown in the
batance shaet cash flow statement and accompanying notes to the
financial statements The principal business nisks associaled with the
bustness are shown on pages 17 and 18, whilsl the risks ansing from
the Group's financial instruments are covered on page 10

The directors, in their consideration of going concern have reviewed
the Group's future cash flow forecasts and revenue projections
which they believe are based on a realistic assessment of future
business performance

The Group s forecasts and projections taking account of reasonable
possible changes in trading performance, show that the Group
should be able to operale within the levels of its agreed facibtics
Accordingly the directors believe it appropriate to prepare the
financial statements of the Group on a going concern basis

Takeovers Directive

Pursuant 1o 5992 of the Companies Act 2006, which implements the
EU Takeovers Directive, the Company 15 required to disclose certain
additional information The following gives those disclosures which
are not covered elsewhere 1n this Annual Report

The Company's Articles of Association (the Articles ) give the Beoard
power to appoint directors, but also require directors o retire and

subrmit themselves for election at the first Annual General Meeting
following their appoiniment A director who relires in this way s
ehgible for election but 1s not taken into account when deciding
how many directors should retire by rotation at the Annual General
Meeting The Articles themselves may be amended by special
resofution of the shareholders

Pursuant to the Articles, at every Annual General Meeling, one third
of the current directors must relire by rotation

The Board of Directors 1s responsible for Lhe management of the
business of the Cempany and may exercise all the powers of the
Company subject to the prowvisions of Lhe Company s Memorandum
of Association and the Articles

The Artictes contain specific provisions and restrichions regarding
the Company's power Lo borrow money Powers relating to the
1ssuing and buying back of shares are also included in the Articles
and shareholders are asked to renew such authornties each year at
the AGM A copy of the Aruicles 1s available on request from the
Company Secretary

There are a number of agreements thal take effect, alter or termunate
upon a change of control of the Company following a takeover

such as commercial contracls, bank agreements property lcase
arrangements and employees share ptans None of these are deemed
1o be significant in terms of their potential impact on the business of
the Group as a whole




20 Hornby > Annual Report and Accounts 2012 > Directors’ Remuneration Report

Directors’ Remuneration Report
for the Year Ended 31 March 2012

Introduction

This report has been prepared in accordance with the Companies Act
2006 and Schedule B of the Large and Medium Sized Companies and
Groups (Accounts and Reports) Regulations 2008 The report also
meets the relevant requirements of the Listing Rules of the Financial
Services Authornily and describes how the Board has applied the
principtes relating to directors’ remuneration in the UK Corporale
Governance Code (2010) A resolulion te approve the report will be
proposed at the Annual General Meeling of the Company at which
the financial statements will be approved

The report has been divided into separate sections for audited and
unaudiled information

UNAUDITED INFORMATION

Remuneraticn Committee

The Company has established a Rermuneration Commiltee
(the 'Committee’) whichis constituted 1n accordance with the
recommendations of the Combined Code The Commultee 1s
comprised of independent non-executive directors The current
members of the Commitiee are N M Carrington (Commuitee
Chairman) and M E Rolfe, both of whom served throughout the
financial year

The Committee meets regularly but more frequently if required
Buring the year three Remuneration Committee meetings were held,
with both members present at each meeting

Neither of the Committee members has any personal financial
interest {other than as shareholders), conflicts of interests ansing
from cross-directorships or day-to-day involvement in running the
business The Committee makes recommendations to the Board No
director plays a part in any discussion about their remuneration The
terms of reference of the Committee are avarlable on the Company
website

In determining the directors’ remuneration for the year, the
Committee consulted F Martin (Chief Executive) about its proposals
New Bridge Street ('NBS ), a trading name of Aon Corporation, 1s
the Committee’s appointed remuneration adviser and continues to
provide advice to the Commuttee Neither NBS nor Aon Corporalion
provides any other services to the Company

Remuneration policy for the Executive Directors

General policy

Executive remuneration packages are designed to atlract, motivale
and retain directors of the high calibre needed to maintain the
Group's position as a markel leader and to reward thern for
enhancing value to shareholders The performance measurement
of the executive directors 1s undertaken by the Commuitee The
Commitlee 1s sensitive to pay and conditions in the workforce when

determining executive remuneration policy and base salary increases
in particular

The Commutiee 1s also aware of the potential risk to the business
of executive pay slructures and s satisfied that the current polhicy 1s
compatible with nsk policies and systems

There are five main elements of the remuneration package for
execulive directors and senior management

+  Basesalary

*  Benefits-in-kind

*  Pension arrangements

+  Performance-related annual bonus
+  Performance Share Plan

The Company’s policy s that a substantial proportion of the
remuneration of the execubive drectors should be performance
related At a targel level of performance, approximaltely 40%-45% of
the total remuneration package is performance-related

Salary and benefits

Execulive directors’ base salaries are reviewed annually by the
Commuttee taking into account the responsibilities, skills and
expenence of each individual, pay and employment conditions within
the Company and salary levels within hsted companies of a similar
size Base salary levels as at 1 Apnil 201 and 2012 are as follows

Salary at Salary at
Director Role 1 April 2012 1 Apnl 2011
F Martn  Chief Executive £267,909 £262 656
A JMoms Finance Director £176 802 £173353

Base salary levels were rewiewed during the first quarter of 2012 and,
consistent with the average increase awarded across the Group,
increased by 2 0% from 1 Apnil 2012

Policies concerning benefits, including the Group's company car
policy, are reviewed periodically Currently, benefits in kind comprise
molor cars and private health cover

Pension

The executive directors and sermor managers are members of
defined contribution pension schemes and annual contributions are
calculated by reference to base salaries, with neither annual bonuses
nor awards under the share incentive schemes taken into account in
calculating the amounts due The contnibution level continues to be
20% of base salary for executive directors For F Martin the balance
of pension in excess of the HMRC Approved hmit of £50,000 15 paid
by way of a salary supplement included in taxable benefits in the
emoluments table
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Performance-related annuat bonus

Executive directors participate in a performance-refaled bonus
scheme The maximum bonus continues to be capped at 100% of
base salary for the Chief Executive and 75% of salary for the Finance
Director

Performance targets are designed both to stretch ang encourage
indnaduals whilst ahgning their inlerests with those of the Group The
performance conditions are divided 80 20 between Group underlying
prohit before tax and personal objectives For the Group underlying
prohit before tax condition, a shding scale range 1s sct around a target
level (designed Lo be stretching bul reabslically achievable} The
porsonal objectives are set at the start of the year and are designed
to be as objective and measurable as possible This rmix of targels s
considered to provide a good link to the business strategy

With effect from 2011, a provision was incorperated into the Annual
Bonus Plan to enable the Company to claw back overpayments in the
evenl of financial misstatement or gross rmisconduct

In respect of the year ended 31 March 2012 neither of the executive
directors were entitled to a bonus

Performance Share Plan

The Performance Share Plan CPSP ) which was approved by
shareholders at the 2008 AGM, was introduced as the Company's
pnimary long-term incentive plan Lo replace the short-term incentive
plan ('STIP") No further awards will be made under the STIP although
fegacy awards continue to vest on therr oniginal terms

Under the PSP, awards are made to executive directors and selected
other execulives on the following basis

»  The maximum award level 1s 150% of base salary per annum
although awards up to 200% of base salary may be granted
to an indavidual in exceplional circumstances (e g recruitment
or retention) The current policy 1s to grant awards over shares
worth 100% of salary

+  Performance conditions are reviewed annually so as to ensure
they reman appropnately pitched in relation to the strategy and
business cycle, and provide an optimal alignment between the
interests of executives and shareholders

*  For 2012, an award will be subject to a total shareholder return
('TSR’) condition and a range of normalised underlying earnings
per share CEPS’) growth targets, each of the TSR and EPS
elements apply {o a separate 50% of an award and measured
over a period of three financial years

»  The TSR condition 1s based on the Company's underlying
performance aganst the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap
(excluding investment trusts) as at the date of grant 25% of
this part of the award will vest if the Company's TSR 15 equal to

the TSR of the median company, with full vesting for top quartile
perfermance A shiding scale operaies between these points

«  For the EPS part of the award, 25% vests for average annual
underlying EPS growth of RP14+3% p a, with full vesting for
average annual EPS growth of RPI1+12% p a A sliding scale
operales between these points

= The Commuttee 1s comfortable that the blend of TSR and
EPS targets continues to provide a good balance between
incenlivising and rewarding slrong financial perlormance on Lhe
one hand whilst, on Lhe other hand, providing a slrong and direct
ahgnment with the inlerests of institutional shareholders by
rewarding stock markel outperfermance

= Performance conditions are calculated by independent advisers
and verihied by the Commitiee

- Execulives benefit, in the form of addiional cash or shares, from
the value of dividends paid over the vesting period, to the extent
that awards vest

= Lis currently intended Lhal market purchased shares are used to
satisfy awards although there s flexibility to use new i1ssue and
treasury shares within institutional shareholder dilution mits

+  Simidar to the bonus plan with effect from 2011 awards, a
provision was incorporated into the PSP to enable the Company
to claw back overpayments in the event of misstaternent or
gross misconduct

Shareholding guidelines

A policy for share ownership guidelines i1s operated for the executive
directors and semor executives For the executive directors, the
required threshold of share ownership 1s 100% of base salary Until
such Lime as this level of shareholding s achieved, 50% of the net
of tax value of awards which vest under the PSP are required to be
retained

Executive Directors’ Service Contracts
The execulive directors do not have fixed period contracts

Frank Martin's service contract dated 26 February 2001 includes

a notice period of one year {o be given by the Company and of six
months to be given by F Martin In heu of giving notice the Company
may terminate the agreement on payment of a lump sum (subjecl to
tax and national insurance) equal to the salary and other benefits to
which he i1s entitled under this agreement

Andrew J Morris's service contract dated 23 November 2007
includes a notice period of one year to be given by the Company and
of six manths to be given by A J Morns In heu of giving notice the
Company may terminate the agreement on payment of a lump sum
(subject to tax and national insurance) equal o the salary and other
benefits to which he 1s entitled under this agreement
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Directors’ Remuneration Report (continued)

for the Year Ended 31 March 2012

Non-Executive Directors’ Contracts

The remuneration of the non-execulive directors is determined by
the Board {except the Company Charman’s fee, which is set and
reviewed by the Remuneration Commuttee) based on the level of
fees paid to non-executive direciors of similar companies and by
considering independent external advice

Neil A Johnson was appointed non-executive Chairman on 22
December 2000 having mitially joined the Board on 1 July 1998 and
recewves salary and fees for his services Lo the Company of £95 000
per annum effective 1 Apnt 2012 80% 1s paid to a third-party
consultancy company and 20% treated as earmings N A Johnson's
service contract dated 13 February 2006, amended March 2007 1s
subject to lermination on six monlhs notice to be given by either the
Company or N A Johnson In heu of gving notice the Company may
lerminate the agreement on payment of a lump sum (subject to tax
and national insurance) equal to the salary and {ee to which he s
enlilled under Lthis agreement

Migel M Carrington, non-executive direclor, was appotnted (o
the Board on 1 December 2007, and receives fees for his services

to the Company of £40,000 per annum effeclive 1 Apnl 2012

N M Carnington's service contract dated 3 November 2007 is
subject Lo termination on six manths notice Lo be given by either the
Company or N M Carninglon In hieu of givang nolice the Company
may termunate the agreement on payment of a lump sum (subject
to tax and national tnsurance) equal to the fee to which he s entitled
under this agreement

Mark E Rolfe, non-executive director, was appointed to the Board on
1 January 2008, and receives fees for his services to the Company

of £40 000 per annum effective 1 April 2012 M E Rolfe s service
contract dated 22 November 2007 1s subject to termination on six
months notice to be given by either the Company or M E Rolfe In
hieu of giving nolice the Company may lerminale the agreemenl on
payment of a lump sum {subject to tax and national insurance) equal
o the fee to whsch he s entitled under this agreement

None of the non-executive directors receives any pension or
performance-related pay from the Company
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AUDITED INFORMATION
DIRECTORS' INTERESTS
Interests in shares
The interests of the direclors in the shares of the Company in the year were
At At
31 March 31 March
2012 2011
number number
N A Johnson 100,000 50,000
F Martin 388,282 354,082
A J Morns 8,404 6,702
N M Carnngton 18,000 10000
M E Roife 10,000 10000
All the interests delailed above are beneficial Aparl from the interests disclosed above no direclors were interested at any time in the year in
the share capital of any other group company
There have been no other changes in Lhe inlerests set oul above between 31 March 2012 and 8 June 2012
Aggregate Directors' remuneration
The total amount for directors’ remuneration was as follows
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
Emoluments 635 675
Money purchase pension contributions 86 86
1 761
Directors’ detailed emoluments
The emeluments of the direclors were as follows
Salary & Taxable Pension 2012 2011
Fees Bonus? Benefits? Contnbution Total TotaP
g L £ £ £ e
Chairman
N A Johnson 95,000 - - - 95,000 90 000
Executive
+ Martin 262,656 - 14 085 50,000 326,741 365,131
A J Moms 173,353 - 10 030 35,628 219,011 236 235
Non-executive
N M Camngton 40,000 - - - 40,000 35,000
M E Rolie 40,000 - - - 40,000 35,000
611 009 - 24,115 85,628 720,752 761,366

The Directors bonus award 1s based on performance targets The targets are based on Group underlying profit before tax (80%) and personal objectives

(20%) Both executive directors achieved nii% (out of a maximum 100%) for the profit before tax element and nil% (out of 2 maximum 100%) for the
personal objectives element The Remuneration Comimitiee took the view that profit delivery in 2011/12 did not support the payment of bonuses for personal

objectives

2 Taxable benefits relate to the provision of 2 company car health assurance and F Martin pension supplement

3 The 201 total column includes pension contnibutians which were £ Martin (£51,250) and A J Morris (£34,691)
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Directors' Remuneration Report (continued)

for the Year Ended 31 March 2012

Performance Share Plan

At 31 March 2012, outstanding awards to directors under the Performance Share Plan were as follows

Market
price at Awarded Lapsed Vested At
Award Vesting Award At durng during during 31 March
Drrector date date date 1 Apnl 2011 year year year 2012
F Martin July 2008 July 20114 149 6p 167,112 - (167,112 - -
July 2009 July 2012 136 Op 183,824 - - - 183,824
June 2010 June 2013 139 5p 183,692 - - - 183,692
June 2011 June 2014 136 4p - 192,591 - - 192,591
A J Morns July 2008 July 2011 149 6p 110,924 - (110,924) - -
July 2009 July 2012 136 Op 121,324 - - - 121,324
June 2010 June 2013 139 5p 121,237 - - - 127,237
June 2011 June 2014 136 4p - 127,110 - - 127,110

For the awards granted to date, 50% of an award 13 subject to a TSR condition and 509% s subject to an EPS performance condition, both of
which are measured over a oernod of three financial years For the TSR condition 25% of this part of the award will vesiif Hornby's TSR 1s equal
Lo the TSR of the median company of the constituents of the FTSE Small Cap (struck at the date of grant), with full vesting for top guartile
performance, with a shiding scale operating between Lhese points For the EPS part of the award, 25% vests for average annual underlying EPS
growth of RPI+3% p a, with full vesting for average annual EPS growth of RP1+12% p a with a shiding scale operating between these points

Interests in share options

Details of opltions held by directors at 31 March 2012 are set out below

Options Qptions Options Options
Options granted exercised lapsed held at
Date held at during dunng during 31 March Exercise
Director of Grant 1 Apnl 2011 the year the year the year 2012 price Exercise perod
£ Martin 28 Mar 2002 600 000 - {600,000) - - 768p 28 Mar 2005 - 28 Mar 2012

F Martin exercised 600,000 share options during the year at 76 8p, the market price at the date of exercise was 120 Op, realising a gain of

£259,200 (2011 - £324 800 gain)

The market price of the Company's shares at 31 March 2012 was 95 Op and the range dunng the year ended 31 March 2012 was 94 3p to

145 0p

Short Term Incentive Ptan

Al 31 March 2012, outstanding awards to directors under the Short Term incentive Plan were as follows

Market Value of Value of

price at enutlement entitlement

Award Vesting Award Number 31 March 2012 31 March 2011

Director date dates date of shares £'000 £'000
F Martin June 2008 June 2012 156 1p 27,191 26 59
A J Moms June 2008 June 2012 156 1p 1,702 2 4

On 17 June 20M, 27,190 shares of the 2008 Award were vested to F Martin The share price on this date was 136 3p
On 17 June 2011,1,702 shares of the 2008 Award were vested to A J Morris The share price on this date was 136 3p

Value of entitlemery at 31 March 2012 1s based on the closing market price of the Company's shares of 95 Op (20711 - 108 Op)
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Performance graph (unaudited information)
The following graph shows the Company’s tolal shareholder return compared {o the TSR of the FTSE Small Cap (excluding investment trusts)
over the five year penod lo 31 March 2012 This index has been selected given that the Company is a constituent of the FTSE Small Cap

M Carringlon
Remuneratton Cordmittee Chairman

8 June 2012




26 Hornby > Annual Report and Accounts 2012 > Statement of Directors responsibilities

Statement of Directors' responsibilities

The directors are responstble for preparing the Annual Reporl, the Directors’ Remuneratron Reporl and the financial stalements m accordance
with applicable law and regulations

Company law requires the directors to prepare linancial statements for each financial year Under that law the directors have prepared the
Group and Parent company financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the
European Union Under company law the directors must nol approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and
fair view of the state of affarrs of the Group and the Company and of the profit or loss of the Group and Company for that period |n preparing
these financial statemenls the directors are required to

= select sulable accounling policies and then apply them consistently,
«  make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent

+  stale whether apphcable IFRSs as adopted by the Eurcpean Union have been followed subject to any material departures disclosed and
explained in the financial statements

The directors are responsible for keeping adequale accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain Lthe Company’s transactions

and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the Group and the Company and enable them Lo ensure that the
financial stalements and the Directors’ Remuneration Reporl comply with the Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the Group financial
statements, Article 4 of the 1AS Regulation They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Group and the Company and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other irregulanties

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrily of the Company’s website Legislation in the Umted Kingdom governing the
preparation and disserination of financial staternents may differ from legislation in other jurisdictions

Each of the directors, whose names and functions are listed in the Directors and Corporate Information section confirm that {0 Lhe best of
their knowledge

= the Group and Company financial statements, which have beer prepared in accordance wilh IFRSs as adopled by the EU, give a teve and
fair iew of the assets habilities, financial position and profit of the Group and Company, and

= the Chief Execulive s Reporl and Corporate Governance Staternent include a farr review of the development and perfermance of the
business and the position of the Group together with a description of the principal risks and uncertainties that it faces

So far as the directors are aware, there 1s no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditors are unaware, and each director has
taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director in order to make themselves aware of any relevant audit information and to
estabhish that the Campany’s auditors are aware of that information

By order of the Board

e —

W Stansfield
Company Secretary

8 June 2012
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Hornby Plc

We have audied Lhe financial statements of Hornby Plc for the year ended 31 March 2012 which comprise the Group and Cempany Statement
of Comprehensive Incomne, the Group and Company Balance Sheet the Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity the Group and
Company Cash Flow Statement, the Group and Company Cash Flow from Operating Actwities and the related notes The linancial seporting
framework that has been applied in their preparation (s applcable law and International Financial Reporting Standards (iFRSs) as adopted by
the European Union

Respective responsibilities of directors and auditors

As explained more fully in the Directors’ Responsibilibies Statement set oul on page 26 the directors are responsible for the preparation of
the financial statemenis and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view Our responsibility 1s 1o audit and express an opinton on the
financial statements in accordance with apphcable law and Inlernational Standards on Auditing (UK and Ireland) Those standards require us
to comply with the Auditing Practices Board’s Ethical Standards for Auditors

This report, including the opinions, has been prepared for and only for the Company's members as a body in accordance with Chapter 3 of
Part 16 of the Companies Act 2006 and for no other purpose We do nol, in giving these opimions, accept or assume respoensibilily for any
other purpose or {o any olher person to whom this report 1s shown or into whose hands it may come save where expressly agreed by our prior
consent in writing

Scope of the audit of the financial statements

An audit involves oblaining evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements sufficient to give reasonable assurance
that the financial statements are free from matertal misstatement, whether cavsed by fraud or error This includes an assessment of whether
the accounting policies are appropriale to the Group's and the Parent Company's circumstances and have been consistently applied and
adequately disclosed, the reasonableness of sigmificant accounting estimates made by the directors, and the overall presentation of the
financial statements in addition, we read all the financia! and non-financial information in the annual report Lo 1dentify matenal inconsistencies
with the audited financial statements If we become aware of any apparent matenal misstatements or inconsistencies we consider the
implications for our report

Opinion on financial statements
In our opinion the finanoial statements

= gwe atrue and fair view of Lhe stale of the Group s and of the Parent Company s alfarrs as at 31 March 2012 and of the Group and Parent
Company's profit and cash flows for the year then ended,

«  have been properly prepared in accordance with IFRSs as adopted by the European Uinion,

»  have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Compames Act 2006 and, as regards the Group hinancial stalements
Article 4 of the [AS Regulation

Opinion on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006

In our opwuion

= the part of the Directors’ Remuneration Report to be audited has been properly prepared in accordance with the Companies Act 2006,

+  the information given in the Directors’ Report for the financial year for which the financial statements are prepared 15 consistent with the
financial statements, and

= the information given in the Corporate Governance Statement set out on pages 12 to 19 with respect to mternal control and risk
management systems and about share capital structures i1s consistent with the financial statements
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Independent Auditors’ Report to the Members of Hornby Plc
(continued)

Matters on which we are required to report by exception
We have nothing to report in respect of the following

Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required Lo report Lo youf 1n our cpinion

+  adequate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company or relurns adequate for our audit bave not been received fram
branches not visited by us or

« the Parent Company financial statements and the part of the Directors Remuneration Report to be audited are nol 1n agreement with the
accounting records and relurns, or

+  certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are nol made or

»  we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit or
*  acorporale governance statemenl has not been prepared by the Parent Company
Under the Listing Rules we are required o review

« thedirectors’ statement, set out on page 19 in relation Lo gommg concern,

+  the parts of the Corporate Governance Stalement relating te the company's compliance with the mine provisions of the UK Corporale
Governance Code specified for our review and

+  ¢erain elerments of the report to shareholders by the Board on directors’ remuneration

Rosemary Shapiand (Seruor Statutery Auditor)

for and on behalf of PricewaterhouseCoopers LEP
Chartered Accountants ang Statutory Auditors
Galwick

8 June 2012
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Group and Company Statement of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011

Note £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
REVENUE 2 64,447 63,372 1,278 1,251
Cost of sales {33,290) (34,095) - -
GROSS PROFIT 31,157 29,277 1,278 1,251
Distribution costs {2,571) (2.579) - -
Selbng and markeating costs (13,761) (12,882) - -
Administrative expenses (9,029) (8,408) {808) (795)
Other operating expenses (1,054) {518) (144) {1866)
OPERATING PROFIT 2 4,742 4,891 326 290
Income from shares in Group undertakings - - 1,932 3,681
Finance income 3 26 64 175 174
Finance costs 3 {779) (826) (234) (228)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 3,989 4,129 2,199 3.7
Analysed as
Underiying profit before taxation 4,526 4,423 2,199 3,917
Net foresign exchange impact on intercompany loans (145) 96 - -
Amortisation of mtangibles (392) {390} - -
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 3,989 4,129 2,199 3917
Taxation 5 (825) (1,274) 22 (135)
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR AFTER TAXATION 3,164 2,855 2,221 3,782
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Cash flow hedges net of tax 300 {655) - -
Currency transiation differences (16) {(15) 305 79
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR,
NET OF TAX 284 {870) 305 79
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 3,448 2,185 2,526 3,861
EARNINGS PER CRDINARY SHARE
Basic 7 8.19p 7 50p
Diluted 7 8.12p 7 43p

All operations relate to continuing operations
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Group and Company Balance Sheet

at 31 March 2012

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
Note £'000 £ 000 £000 £ 000
ASSETS
NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Goodwill 8 13,059 13,372 - -
Intangible assets 9 4,350 4,820 - -
Property, plant and equipment 10 10,022 10,208 1,309 1,344
Investments 11 - - 36,601 35,172
Deferred tax assets 20 538 i09 7 16
27,969 28,5039 37,917 36,532
CURRENT ASSETS
Inventornes 12 17,867 16,213 - -
Trade and cther receivables 13 13,169 13,648 33 as
Dervative financial investments 19 104 a3 - -
Current tax assets 17 61 282 9 130
Cash and cash equivalents 14 1,852 4,952 2 11
33,153 35,188 44 179
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 (3,474) (3,136) - -
Denvative financial instruments 19 (2,155) (3,193) - -
Trade and other payables 15 (9,822) (11,259) (88) {132}
Provisions 16 (324) (413) - -
Current tax habitties 17 (705} (564) (245} (20)
(16,480} (18,565) (333) (152)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 16,673 16,623 (289) 27
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Borrowings 18 {4,888) (8,026) {5,018} {5,331)
Deferred tax iabiities 20 (573) (337) {159) (177)
{5,461) {8.363) (5,177) {5.508)
NET ASSETS 39,181 36,769 32,451 31,051
EQUITY ATTRIBUTABLE TO OWNERS OF THE PARENT
Share capital 21 392 385 392 385
Share premium 6,180 5,643 6,180 5,643
Capital redemption reserve 55 55 55 55
Translation reserve {545) (529) {985) {1,290)
Hedging reserve {187) {487) - -
Other reserves 1,688 1,688 19,145 19,145
Retained earmings 31,598 30,014 7,664 7,113
TOTAL EQUITY 39,181 36,769 32,451 31,051

The financial statements on pages 29 to 33 were approved by the Board of directors on 8 June 2012 and were signed on its behalf by

F Martin
Director
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Group and Company Statement of Changes in Equity

year ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011

Capital
Share Share  redemption Translation Hedging Qther Retamned Total
capstal Prermium reserve rgserve reserve resenves eamnings equity
GROUP £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000
Balance at 1 Aprii 2010 380 5,340 85 (514) 168 1,688 29,511 36,628
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - {15} (655) - 2,855 2,185
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 5 303 - - - - - 308
Share-based payments - - - - - - 51 51
Shares vested from employee benefit trust - - - - - - 146 146
Dividends - - - - - - {2,549) (2,549)
5 303 - - - - {2,352) {2,044)
Balance at 31 March 2011 385 5,643 55 (529) (487) 1,688 30,014 36,769
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - (16) 300 - 3.164 3,448
Transactions wrth owners
Issue of shares 7 537 - - - - - 544
Share-based payments - - - - - - 262 262
Shares vested from employee benefit trust - - - - - - a0 a0
Dmadends - - - - - - {1,932) (1,932}
7 537 - - - - (1.580} (1.036)
Balance at 31 March 2012 392 6,180 55 (545) (187) 1,688 31,598 39,181

Retained earnings includes £621,000 at 31 March 2012 (2011 - £638,000) which 1s not distnbutable and relates to a 1986 revaluation of
land and buldings

Capital
Share Share  redemption Translation Other Retained Total
caprtal premum resarve reserve reserves earnngs equity
COMPANY £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000
Balance at 1 April 2010 380 5,340 55 (1,369) 19,145 5,829 29,380
Total comprehensive Income for the year - - - 79 - 3,782 3,861
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 5 303 - - - - 308
Share-based payments - - - - - 51 51
Dwdends - - - - - (2.549) {2,549)
5 303 - - - (2,498) {2,190)
Balance at 31 March 2011 385 5,643 55 (1,260} 19,145 7,113 31,051
Total comprehensive income for the year - - - 305 - 2,224 2,526
Transactions with owners
Issue of shares 7 837 - - - - 544
Share-based payments - - - - - 262 262
Dividends - - - - - {1,932) {1,832)
7 537 - - - (1.670) {1,126)

Balance at 31 March 2012 392 6,180 55 (985) 19,145 7,664 32,451
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Group and Company Cash Flow Statement

for the year ended 31 March 2012

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 201

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 5,856 8,072 466 328
Intetest receved 26 B4 175 174
Inte: est paid (779} {826) (234) (228)
Tax (padyrepad {656) (1.750) 62 (253)
Net cash generated from operating actmities 4,447 3,560 469 18
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 1 181 - -
Purchase of property, plant and equipment {3,787) {4,499) - -
Diidends receved - - 1,932 3,681
Net cash (used m)/generated from investing actmties (3,786) (4,318) 1,932 3,681
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of ordinary shares 544 308 544 308
Repayments of issue of loans 2,577) {1,554) - -
Finance lease caprtal payments (29) (54) - -
Diadends paid to Company's shareholders {1,932} {2,549) (1,932) {2.549)
Loans to subsidiary undertakings - - (1,014) {1,529)
Net cash used n financing activities {3,994} (3,849} (2,402) (3.770)
Effect of exchange rate movements 527 125 {8) 37
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents (2,806) (4,482) {9) (34}
Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts at beginning of the year 4,397 8,879 11 a5
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,591 4,397 2 11
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS CONSIST OF:
Cash and cash equivalents 1,952 4,952 2 11
Banlc overdrafts (361) {555) - -
CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS
AT END OF YEAR 1,591 4,397 2 ER|
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Group and Company Cash Flow from Operating Activities

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Profit before taxation 3,989 4,129 2,199 3,917
Interest payable 779 826 234 228
Interest receivable {26) {64) {175) (i74)
Dividend income - - {1,932) (3.681)
Amortisation of intangible assets 392 390 - -
Depreciation 3,914 4,060 35 43
Profit on disposal of property, plant and equipment - 2 - -
Share-based payments 262 51 144 166
(Gainjloss on financial denvatives (18) 75 - -
{Decrease)/increase in provisions {89) 22 - -
Increase in nventornes {1,654} (3,840) - -
Decrease/(increase) in trade and other receivables 479 (349) 5 6
{Decrease)/increase in trade and other payables (2,172) 874 (44) (180)
CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS 5,856 6,072 466 325
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Notes to the Financial Statements
for the year ended 31 March 2012

1 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting policies for the year ended 31 March 2012

The prncipal accounting policies adopted In the preparation of these financral statements are set cut below These policles have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial information for the year ended 31 March 2012 has been prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards ('IFRS’) as adopted by the European Union (‘EU ) IFRS Interpretations Committee (1FRIC’) interpretations and with those parts
of the Companies Act 2006 applicable to companes reporting under IFRS The consclidated and Parent Company financial statements
have been prepared on a going concern basis and under the histoncal cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain financial
assets and habilities (including denvative mstruments) at fair value through profit or loss

The preparation of financial staternents in conformity with IFRS requires the use of estimates and assumphons that affect the reported
amounts of assets and liabilties at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses dunng the
reporting period Although these estimates are based on management’s best knowledge of the amount, event or actions, actual results
ultimately may differ from those estimates

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

Subsidiaries are all entiies over which the Group has the power to govern the financial and cperating policies generally accompanying a
shareholding of more than one half of the voting nghts  Subsidianies are fully consoldated from the date on which controlis transferred to
the Group They are de-consolidated from the date that control ceases

The purchase method of accounting 1s used to account for the acquisiion of subsidianes by the Group The cost of an acquisition 1S
measured as the far value of the assets given, equiy instruments issued and habilihes incurred or assumed at the date of exchange, plus
costs drrectly attnbutable to the acquisiion  Identifiable assets acquired and habilfies and contingent habilities assumed in a business
combination are measured initially at therr far values at the acquisition date, wrespective of the extent of any mmonty interest The excess
of the cost of acquisttion over the far value of the Group's share of the identifiable net assets acquired 1s recorded as geodwill

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between Group companies are elminated Unrealtsed losses
are also eliminated but considered an imparment indicator of the asset transferred Accounting policies of subsidianes have been changed
where necessary to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the Group

ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED STANDARDS
Interpretations effective in the current year

There are no IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are effective for the first time for the financial year beginning on or after 1 Apnl 2011 that
would be expected to nave a matenal impact on the Group

Interpretations effective in the current year but not relevant

The following interpretations to published standards are mandatory for accounting perods beginning on or after 1 Apn! 2011 but are not
relevant to the Group's operations in the current year

1AS 24 (revised), ‘Related party disclosures’
IFRIC 14 amendment ‘Prepayments of a minimum funding arrangement’
IFRIC 19 ‘Extinguishing financial kabiliies with equity investments’

Annual Improvements Project 2010

Standards, amendments and interpretations to existing standards that are not yet effective and have not been early adopted by the
Group

The following standards and amendments to existing standards have been pubhshed and are mandatory for the Group’s accounting
pencds beginning on or after 1 Aprld 2012 or later penods, but the Group has not garly adopted them

Amendment to [FRS 7 ‘Financial instruments Disclosures’ the amendment will promote transparency in the reporting of transfer
transactions and improve understanding of nsk exposures relating to transfers of financial instruments The Group 1S yet to assess the
IFRS 7 amendment’s full impact and intends to adopt the amendment no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 Apnl 2012

Amendment to IAS 1 ‘Financial statement presentation’ the amendment 1s a requirement for entities to group items presented 1in other
comprehensive Income (‘OCI') on the basis of whether they are potentially reclassifiable to profit or 10ss The Group is yet to assess the IAS
1 amendment’s full impact and intends to adopt the armendment ne later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 April 2013
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IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ addresses the classification, measurement and recognition of financial assets and financial habiities IFRS
9 was 1ssued n November 2009 and October 2010 !t replaces the parts of IAS 39 that relate to the classification and measurement of
financial Instruments IFRS 9 requires financial assets to be classified into two measurement categenes those measured as at fair value
and those measured at amortised cost The determination 1s made at inibal recognition The classification depends on the entity's business
modal for managing ts financal mstruments and the contractual cash flow charactenstics of the instrument For financial habiities, the
standard retains most of the IAS 39 requirements The mamn change 1s that, n cases where the farr value optron 1s taken for financial
liabiiites, the part of a far value change due to an entity's own credit rnisk 1S recorded in other comprehensive income rather than the
income statement, unless this creates an accounting mismatch The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 9's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS
9 no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 Apnt 2013

IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated financial staternents’ builds on existing principles by dentifying the concept of control as the determining factor in
whether an entity should be included within the consolidated financial statements of the parent company The standard provides addibonal
guidance to assist in the determination of control where this 1s difficult to assess The Group I1s yet to assess IFRS 10 s full impact and
intends to adopt IFRS 10 no later than the accounting penod beginming on 1 Apnl 2013

tFRS 12 ‘Disclosures of interests in other entities’ Includes the disclosure requirements for all forms of interests in other entilies, ncluding
joint arrangements, associates, special purpose vehicles and other off balance shest vehicles The Group 1s yet to assess IFRS 12’s full
impact and intends to adopt IFRS 12 no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 April 2013

IFRS 13 *Farr value measurement’ aims to Improve consisiency and reduce complexity by providing a precise definihon of far value and
a single source of farr value measurement and disclosure requirements for use across IFRSs  The requirements, which are largely aligned
between IFRSs, do not extend the use of fair value accounting but provide guidance on how it should be applied where its use ts already
required or permitted by other standards within IFRSs The Group is yet to assess IFRS 13's full impact and intends to adopt IFRS 13 no
later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 April 2012

IAS 27 ‘Separate financial statements’ (rewsed) includes the provisions on separate financial statements that are feft after the control
prowisions of IAS 27 have been included in IFRS 10 The Group 13 yet 1o assess IAS 27 (revised) full impact and intends to adopt IAS 27
{revised) no later than the accounting penod beginning on 1 Aprit 2013

There are no other IFRSs or IFRIC interpretations that are not yet effective that would be expected to have a matenal impact on the Group

RECONCILIATION OF STATUTORY TO NON STATUTORY INFORMATION IN THE CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE'S REPORT

Underlying profit before taxation 1s shown to present a clearer view of the trading performance of the business Management has identified
the following non-trivial adjustments, whose inclusion in earmings could distort undertying trading performance net foreign exchange gains/
losses on intercompany loans which are dependent on exchange rates from time to time and can be volatile and amortisation of intangibles
which result from histonc acquisitions and restructunng

Group
2012 201
£'000 £000
Profit before taxation 3,989 4,129
Foreign exchange on mtercompany loans
including wmnpact of foreign exchange collar 145 {96)
Amortisation of intangibles (note 9) 392 390

Underlying profit before taxation 4,526 4,423
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Statement of Gomprehensive Income discloses foreign exchange movements and amortisation of intangibles in other operating
expenses

Group
2012 201
£'000 £ 000
Reconciliation of net debt
Cash 1,952 4,852
Total borrowings excluding finance leases (note 18} (8,263) (11,034}
Net debt (6,311) (6,082)

Hornby Hoblies Limited, the Group’s UK trading subsidiary, has granted Euro denominated intercompany ioans to sister subsidiary
companies that are translated into Sterling at statutory penod ends thereby creating exchange gains ar fosses In order to miigate the
exchange exposure Homby Hobbies Limited has entered a foreign exchange collar contract to sell an equal number of Euros in October
2012 that will be revalued by an approximately similar but oppostte Sterling value at each penod end

The foreign exchange collar 1s for a principal amount of Euro 16 5 milhon and 15 N place to mintmise exposure to Euro denominated
intercormpany loans

The amount shown above comprises losses on translation of intercompany loans of £875,000 (2011 - loss of £127,000), offset by a gain
on marking to market the foreign exchange collar of £730,000 (2011 - gan of £223,000)

Beneficial impact of the collar as at 3 October 2012 is expected to be a rmmimum of £340,000 ff the exchange rate exceeds the stnke
rate of 1 4300 € £, increasing to a maximum of £767,000 at the participation cap rate of 1 3790 € £ compared to the intercompany loans
Sterling valuation at 31 March 2007 (1 4734 € ©)

As at 31 March 2012 the cumulative profit impact 1s a gain of £730,000 Therefore in the penod 1 Apnl 2012 to 30 September 2012 there
will be an adjustment to the Statement of Comprehensive Income between a £37,000 prefit and £390,000 charge

The fluctuation of foreign exchange and resuftant impact on mtercompany loans and foreign exchange collar s set out below

€16 § milkon

Forexgn intercompany Gain Far Net gain/(loss)

exchanga loan /{loss) value in Profit

rate n Sterling on loan collar before tax

€L E"000 £ 000 £ 000 £ 000

06 Aug 2007 Transaction 147 11,199 - - -
31 Mar 2008 125 13,156 1,957 (1.346) 611
31 Mar 2009 108 15,288 4,089 (3,270) 208
31 Mar 2010 112 14,722 3,523 (2,774) (70)
31 Mar 2011 113 14,606 3,407 (2.552) 106
31 Mar 2012 120 13,750 2,551 {1.821) {125)
Total cumulative gain/(loss) to profit before tax 730

Prior to expiry in October 2012 the Company intends to enter a new one year foreign exchange collar contract that will mclude the current
collar mark to market vatuation and have no cash impact

REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue compnses the far value of the sale of goods net of value added tax, rebates and discounts, royalty mcome and after elminating
sales within the Group

Revenue 1s recogmsed as follows

(a) Sales of goods

Sales of goods are recognised when a Group entity has despatched products to the customer The customer 1s either a trade customer
or the consumer when sold through Homby concessions in vanous retail outlets, or via the intemet
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(b) Royalty mcome
Royalty income 1s recognised on an accruals basis in accordance with the substance of the relevant agreements

{c) Sales returns

The Group establishes a sales returns provision at the penod end that reduces income in anticipation of customer retums of goods sold
n the penod

(d) Hornby Visitor Centre
Revenue 1s generated from the ticket and product sales at our Visitor Centre in Margate

Dividend income 1n the Company s recognised upon receipt

Management fees are recognised in the Company on an accruals basis in relation to costs mcurred on behalf of subsidiary comparues

OPERATING SEGMENTS
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting prowvided to the chief operating decision-maker The

chief operating decision-maker, who 15 responsible for allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments, has
been identfied as the Board of the Group that makes strategic decisions

Operating profit of each reporting segment includes revenue and expenses directly attnbutable to or able to be allocated on a reasonable
basts Segment assets and habilities are those operating assets and labilities directly attributable to or that can be allocated on areasonable
basts

BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Goodwill anising on a business combination before 1 Apnl 2004, the date of transiion 10 IFRS, 1s not subject to amortisation but tested for
mpairment on an annual basis Intangible assets, excluding goodwill, ansing on a business combination subsequent to 1 Apnt 2004, are
separately identfied and valued, and subject to amortsation over their estimated economic ives

GOODWILL

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the farr value of the Group's share of the net identifiable assets of the
acqurred subsidiary at the date of acquisittion Goodwill Is tested annually for imparrment and camed at cost less accumulated impairment
losses Imparment losses on goodwill are not reversed Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold

Goodwill 1s allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of mpawment testing The allocation 1s made to those cash-generating
units or groups of cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose identified
according to operating segment

INTANGIBLES

{(a) Brand names

Brand names are capitalised at far vaiue as at the date of acquisiion They are carried at therr far value less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the fair value of brand names
over ther estimated economic life of 15-20 years Brand names have been valued on a “relief from royalty” basis

(b} Customer hsts

Customer sts are capitalised at far value as at tha date of acquisition They are camed at therr far value less accumulated amortisation
and any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation 1s calculated using the straight-line method to allocate the fair value of customer
relationships over ther estimated economic fe of 10 years Customer ists have been valued according to discounted incremental operating
profit expected to be generated from each of them over their useful ives

{c) Research and development

Research expendiiure is recognised as an expense as Incurred Costs incurred on developmeant projects {relating to the design and testing
of new products) are recogrised as ntangible assets when it 13 probable that the project will be a success, considenng its commercial and
technological feasibility, and costs can be measured reliably Other development expenditures are recognised as an expense as incurred
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Land and buldings are shown at cost less accumulated depreciation Assets revalued pnor to the transition to IFRS use this valuation as
deemed cost at this date Other property, plant and equipment are shown at histoncal cost less accumulated depreciation Cost ncludes
the onginal purchase pnce of the asset and the costs attributable to bnnging the asset to its working condition for s ntended use

Depreciation 1s provided at rates calculated to write off the cost or valuation of each asset, on a straight-tine basis (with the exception of
tools and moulds) over its expected useful Iife to its residual value, as follows

Freehold buldings - 30 to 50 years
Plant and equipment - 510 10 years
Motor vehicles - 4 years

Freehold land 1s not depreciated

Tools and moulds are depreciated at varying rates in ine with the related estimated product sales on an item-by-item basis up to a
maximum of 4 years

IMPAIRMENT OF NON-CURRENT ASSETS

Assets that have an indefinite useful life, for example goodwill, are not subject to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment
Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for imparment when events or changes in circumstances ndicate that the carrying
value may not be recoverable An mmpairment 10ss 15 recognised for the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds s recoverable
amount, which 1s considered to be the higher of its value in use and far value less costs to sell In order to assess impairment, assets are
grouped into the lowest levels for which there are separately identrfiable cash flows {cash-generating units) Cash flows used to assess
impairment are discounted using appropriate rates taking into account the cost of equity and any ngks relevant to those assets

INVESTMENTS

In the Company's financial statements, nvestments m subsidiary undertakings are stated at cost less any imparment Investments revalued
using the equity method of valuation prior to the transition to IFRS use this valuation as deemed cost at this date In previcus years dividend
ircome was presented in finance ncome This has now been shown separately in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net reahsable value Cost 1s predominantly determined using the first-in, first-out (FIFQ)
method Alternative methods may be used when proven to generate no matenal difference The cost of finished goods and work In progress
comprises raw matenals, direct labour, other direct costs and related production overheads {based on normal operating capacity)

Net realisable value 1s based on anticipated selling price less further costs expected to be incurred to completion and disposal Provisions
are made against those stocks considered to be obsolete or excess to requirements on an tem-by-item basis

The replacement cost, based upon latest nvoice prices before the balance sheet date, 1s considered to be higher than the balance sheet
value of nventones at the year end due to pnce nises and exchangse fluctuations It is not considered practicable to prowde an accurate
estimate of the difference at the year end date

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial labilies are recognised in the Group's balance sheet when the Group becomes a party to the contractual
prowisions of the instrurnent

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Financial labiites and equity instruments are classtfied according 1o the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into

An equity instrument 1s any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its habilites  Equrty
mstruments issued by the Group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct 1ssue costs

SALES RETURNS PROVISIONS

Provision for sales returns are recognised when the Group has a constructive obligation as a result of a past event Prowsion for sales
retumns are measured at the present value of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the obligation
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TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade recewvables are recognised intially at far value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less provision for impawment A
provision for imparment is established when there is objective evidence that the Group will not be able to collect all amounts due according
to the onginal terms of receivables The amount of the provision i1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

TRADE PAYABLES
Trade payables are recognised invhially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

TAXATION INCLUDING DEFERRED TAX
Corporation tax, where payable, 1s provided on taxable profits at the current rate

The taxation habilties of certain Group undertakings are reduced wholly or in part by the surrender of losses by fellow Group undertakings

Deferred tax 1s prowded on all temporary differences at the balance sheet date between the tax bases of assets and habilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes

Deferred tax assets are recogrised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-iorward of unused tax assets and unused tax losses, to
the extent that it 1s probable that taxable profit will be avallable against which the deductible temporary differences, and the carry-forward
of unused tax assets and unused tax losses can be utiised The carring amouni of deferred income tax assets 1s reviewed at each
balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it 1s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part
of the deferred income tax asset to be utiised

Deferred income tax assets and habilities are offset when there Is a legally enforceable night to offset current tax assets against current tax
habilihes, and when the deferred income tax assets and labilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authonty on either the
taxable entity or different taxable entities where there 1s an intention to setile the balances on a net basis

Deferred tax assets and habilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected 1o apply to the year when the asset 1s realised or the
liability 1s settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date Tax relating
to tems recogrused directly in equity s recognised in equrty and not in the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Deferred tax assets and kabiities have not been discounted

CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN APPLYING THE ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future, none of which are regarded as cntical The resulting accounting
estimates will, by definiion, seldom equal the related actual results The estimates and assumptions that may have an element of nsk causing
an adiustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilitles within the next financial year include prowisions for stock obsolescence,
customer returns, doubtful debts, imparment reviews, farr values of share-based payments, fair values of denvatives and recoverability of
deferred tax assets All of the above are estimated with reference to histoncal data, expectatron of future events and reviewed regularty

Further details in refation to impairment reviews are in note 8 and in tefation to share-based payments in note 22

Liabilities and prowisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it 1s
more kkely than not that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation and the amount has been reliably estimated The
expense relating to any hability or prowision is presented in the Statement of Comprehensive Income net of any reimbursement

Provisions are measured at the present value of management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present obligation
at the balance sheet date If matenal, prowisions are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows of the Group at rates that
reflect current market assessments of the time value of money

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of the cash flow statement includes cash in hand, deposits at alf banks, other iguid investments
with onginal maturiies of three months or less and bank overdrafts Bank overdrafts or loans where there 1s no nght of set off are shown
within borrowings n current or non-current habilities on the balance sheet as approprate

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
Homby Plc operates three share-based payment plans

- Share Option Scheme
~  Short Term Incentive Pian

-~ Performance Share Plan
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Notes to the Financial Statements (continued)

The Group 1ssues equity-settled share-based payments to certam employees Equity-settied share-based payments are measured at far
value {excluding the effect of non market-based vesting conditions) at the date of grant The fair value determined at the grant date of the
equity-settled share-based payments 1s expensed on a straight-line basis over the vesting pernod, based on the Group's estimate of shares
that will eventually vest and adjusted for the effect of non market-based vesting conditions

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group 1s treated as
a capital contnbution The farr value of employee services receved, measured by reference to the grant date fair value, 1s recognised over
the vesting perod as an increase 1o investment in subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity

Share Option Scheme

Fair value s measured by use of the Black Scholes model The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based on management's
best estimate, for the effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions and behavioural considerations

Short Term Incentive Plan

The Short Term Incentive Plan (STIP) investment 1s camed at the cost of the shares held This investment in own shares 1s presented as
a deduction from shareholders’ funds

The matched element of the STIP which has a condition of employment attached to it 1s recorded at far value and spread over the vesting
penod of the shares and recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income over this period

Performance Share Plan
Awards are granted 1o executive directors in shares worth 100% of salary, with lower levels of grant for less senior executives

The Performance Share Plan (PSP) incorporates two 3-year performance condiions

- Total Shareholder Retumn (TSR)

-~ Earnings per share (EPS} growth targets

each applying to a separate 50% of the award and vest on the 3rd anniversary of grant as appropnate

The TSR far value and the projected EPS award fair value are spread over the vesting penod of the shares and recognised in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income in the appropnate year

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT COSTS

During the year the Group operated a defined contribution money purchase pension scheme under which it pays contrbutions based
upon a parcentage of the members’ basic salary The scheme 1s administered by trustees either appointed by the Company or elected by
the members (to constitute one third mmimum}

Contributions to defined contribution pension schemes are charged to the Statement of Comprehensive Income according to the year in
which they are payable

Further information on pension costs and the scheme arrangements 1s provided in note 24

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM

Ordinary shares issued are shown as share capital at nominal value The premium received on the sale of shares in excess of the nominal
value 15 shown as share premium within total equity

LEASES

The Group enters into operating and finance leases

Assets held under finance leases are initially reported at the far value of the asset with an equivalent hiability categonsed as appropnate
under current and non-current payables The assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and their useful economic lives

Finance charges are allocated to accounting penods over the penod of the lease to produce a constant rate of return on the outstanding
balance Rentals are apportioned between finance charges and the reduchon of the ability and allocated to net interest

Assets under operating leases are charged on a straight-hne basis to the Statement of Comprehensive Income over the lease term
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BORROWING COSTS

Borrowings are recogrised inttially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred Borrowings are subsequently carmed at amortised cost,
any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value 1s recognised in the Statement of Comprehensive
Income over the penod of the borrowings using the effective interest method

Fees paid on the estabhshment of loan faciities are recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it 1s protyable that some
or all of the facility will be drawn down In this case, the fee is deferred untit the draw-down occurs and subsequently amortised over the
Iife of the faciity To the extent that there 15 no evidence that it is probable that some or alt of the faciity wilt be drawn down, the fee s
capitaiised as a prepayment for hquidity services and amortised over the period of the racility to which 1t relates

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial nsk factors

The Group's operations expose 1t to a vanety of financial nsks that include the effects of changes in foreign currency exchange rates,
market interest rates, credit nsk and its hquidity position The Group has in place a nsk management programme that seeks to imut adverse
effects on the financial performance of the Group by using foreign currency financial instruments In addiion, other nstruments are used
to manage the Group’s mterest rate exposure

{a} Foreign exchange nisk

The Group is exposed to foreign exchange nsks against Sterling pnmanly on transactions in Hong Kong Dollars and US Dollars It enters
nto forward currency contracts to hedge the cash flows of ts product sourcing operation (1 e t buys HK Dollars forward in exchange
for Sterling) and looks forward 6-12 months on a roling basis at forecasted purchase volumes The policy framework requires hedging
between 8O per cent and 100 per cent of anticipated mport purchases that are denominated i HK Dollars

The Group has granted Eurc dencminated intercompany lcans to subsidiary companies that are translated to Sterling at statutory period
ends thereby creating exchange gans or losses In order to mitigate the exchange exposure the Group has entered a foreign exchange
collar contract to sell an equal number of Euros in October 2012 that will be revalued by an approximately similar but opposite Sterling
value at each penod end

{b) Interest rate nsk
The Group finances its operations through a mixture of retained profits and bank borrowings The Group borrows, principally in Sterting,
at floating rates of interest to mest short term funding requirements At the year end the Group's only borrowings were finance leases, a
revoing credit facility, bank overdrafts and a fixed term loan agreement An interest rate hedge 1s in place to protect the Group aganst
future interest rate nses

(c) Credit risk

The Group manages its credit nsk through a combination of ntermnal credit managernent policies and procedures and external credit
nsurance

(d) Liquidity nsk

The Group has borrowings comprnising a revolving credit faciiity (£10 milion — expinng August 2015) and a fixed-term loan agreement (£7 5
milkon — expinng July 2014) The Group's policy on hguidity nsk is to ensure that sufficient cash 1s avallable to fund future operations The
peak level of net debt in the vear to 31 March 2012 was £15 6 millon Those needs are determined by monitonng forecast and actual cash
flows The Group regularly monitors its performance against its banking covenants to ensure comphance

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

To manage exposure to foreign currency nsk, the Group uses foresgn currency forward contracts and a foreign exchange collar, and to
manage nterest rate nsk, the Group uses an interest rate swap, also known as denvatve financial instruments

Denvatives are mitally recognised at farr value on the date a denvative contract 1s entered into and are subsequently re-measured at therr
far value The Group documents at the inception of the transaction the relatonship between hedging instruments and hedged items, as
well as its nsk management objective and sirategy for undertaking varous hedge transactions The Group also documents its assessment,
both at hedge Inception and on an ongoing basis, of whether the denvatives that are used in hedging transactions are highly effective in
offsetting changes in fair values of the hedged tems
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(a) Cash flow hedge

The effective portion of changes in the fair value of derivatives that are designated and qualify as cash flow hedges are recognised in equity
The gan or loss relating to the ineffectve portion 1s recogrised immediately i the Statement of Comprehensive Income within operating
expenses

Amounts accumulated in equity are recycled in the Statement of Comprehensive Income In the penods when the hedged tem afiects profit
or loss {fer instance when the forecast purchase that 1s hedged takes place) The gan or loss relating to the effective portion of forward
foreign exchange contracts hedging import purchases i1s recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income within 'cost of sales’
However, when the forecast transaction that 1s hedged results in the recognition of a non-financial asset {for example, inventory) the gains
and losses previously deferred in equity are transferred from eguity and included in the nittal measurement of the cost of the asset The
deferred amounts are ultimately recognised in cost of goods sold in the case of inventory

When a hedging instrument expires or 1s sold, or when a hedge no longer meets the cntena for hedge accounting, any cumulative gain
or loss existing in equity at that time remains n equity and 15 recognised when the forecast transaction 1s ultimately recogmised in the
Statement of Comprehensive Income When a forecast transaction is no longer expected to occur, the cumulative gain or loss that was
reported in equity 1s immediately transferred to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

(b) Denvatives that do not quablfy for hedge accounting

Certan denvative nstruments ncluding the foreign exchange collar are not considered effective and do not gualify for hedge accounting
Such dervatives are classified as at far value through the Statement of Comprehensive Income, and changes in the farr value of denvative
instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognised immedately in the Statement of Comprehensive income

FAIR VALUE ESTIMATION

The far values of short-term deposits, loans and overdrafts with a matunty of less than one year are assumed o be approximate to ther
book values

The far values of the denvative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are disclosed in note 19

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are recorded In Sterling at the exchange rates ruling at the date of the transaction Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from such transactions are recogrised in the Statement of Comprehensive Income, except when
deferred in equity as quakfyving cash flow hedges Monetary assets and liabidities denorminated in foretgn currencies are translated at the
exchange rates ruling at the balance sheet date and any exchange differences are taken to the Statement of Comprehensive Income

Foreign exchange gans/losses refating to foreign currency loans and other foreign exchange adjustments are included within operating
profit and shown separately as part of other operating expenses

On consolidation, the Statement of Comprehensive Income and cash flows of foreign subsidianes are translated nto Sterling using
average rates that existed during the accounting penod The balance sheets of foresgn subsidianes are translated into Sterling at the rates
of exchange ruling at the balance sheet date Gains or losses ansing on the translation of opening and closing net assets are recognised
n the Statement of Changes in Equity

DIVIDEND DISTRIBUTION

Final dvidends are recorded in the Statement of Changes in Equity in the penod in which they are approved by the Company's shareholders
Interm dvidends are recorded in the penod in which they are approved and paid

2 SEGMENTAL REPORTING

Management has determined the operating segments based on the reports reviewed by the Board (chief operating decision-maker) that
are used 1o make strategic decistons

The Board considers the business from a geographic perspective Geographically, management considers the performance in the UK,
US, Spain, Italy and the rest of Europe

Although the US segment does not meet the guantitative thresholds reguired by IFRS 8, management has concluded that this segment
should be reported, as it 1s closely monitored by the Board as it 1s outside Eurcpe

The Company 15 a holding company operating in tha UK with its results given in the Company Statement of Comprehensive Income on
page 29 and its assets and habiibes given in the Company Balance Sheet on page 30 Other Company information i1s provided in the other
notes to the accounts
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Year ended 31 March 2012

Rest

Total

of Reportable Intra
UK USA Span ftaly Eurcpe Segments Group Group
£ 000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue - External 45,484 2,729 3,693 4,911 7,630 64,447 - 64,447
— Other segments 3,053 - 6,410 48 - 10,011 (10,011) -
Operating profit 2,950 58 845 605 284 4,742 - 4,742
Finance cost — External 675) - (73) (5] (25) (779) - (779)
— Other segments - B) (234) (312) {111 (663) 663 -
Finance income - BExternal 24 - 1 1 - 286 - 26
— Other segments 663 - - - - 663 (663) -
Profit before taxation 2,962 52 539 288 148 3,989 - 3,989
Analysed as
Underlying proiit before taxation 3,371 52 539 384 180 4,526 - 4,526
Net foreign exchange impact
on intercompany loans (145) - - - - (145) - {145)
Amortisation of ntangibles (264) - - (98) (32) {392) - (392)
Profit before taxation 2,962 52 539 288 148 3,989 - 3,989
Taxation (468} - (428) (142) 48) {1,086) - {1.086}
Profit for the year 2,494 52 111 146 100 2,903 - 2,903
Segment assets 53,178 1,318 11,961 10,669 3,771 80,897 (20,374) 60,523
L ess intercompany receivables (17,448} [e)] (2,464) {453) (80 (20,374) 20,374 -
Add tax assets 538 - 9 17 35 599 - 599
Total assets 36,268 1,317 9,506 10,233 3,798 61,122 - 61,122
Segment labilties 17,451 1,303 9,530 7,757 4,991 41,032 (20,374) 20,658
Less intercompany payables (211} (1,175) (8,092) {7,196) (3,700) (20,374) 20,374 -
Add tax habilities 648 - 382 242 11 1,283 - 1,283
Total habilities 17,888 128 1,820 803 1,302 21,941 - 21,941
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 2,820 6 a77 25 53 3,881 - 3,881
Depreciation 2,846 16 787 237 28 3,914 - 3,914
Net foreign exchange on
intercompany leans 145 - - - - 145 - 145
Amortisation of intangible assets 264 - - 26 32 392 - 392
Share-based payment — charge to
Statement of Comprehensive Income
{note 22) 262 - - - - 262 - 262

All transactions between Group companies are on normal commercial terms and an arm’s length basis
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Year ended 31 March 2011

Rest

Total

of Reportable Intra
UK usa Spamn Itaty Europe Segments Group Group
£ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Revenue — External 47,273 2,667 3,260 4,628 5,544 63,372 - 63,372
— Other segments 3,526 - 3,823 347 - 7.696 {7,696) -
Operating profit/(loss) 4,416 (35) {160) 690 {20) 4,891 - 4,891
Finance cost — External (763) - (45) (2) (16) (826) - {826)
— Other segments - {9} (221) {295) (104) (629) 629 -
Finance income - External 60 - - 4 - 64 - 64
— Other segments 629 - - - - 629 (629) -
Profit/{loss} before taxation 4,342 (44) (426) 397 {140) 4,129 - 4,129
Analysed as
Undertying profit before taxation 4,509 (44) (426) 491 (107) 4,423 - 4,423
Net foreign exchange impact
on intercompany loans 96 - - - - 96 - 96
Amortisation of intangbles (263) - - (94) (33) (390) - {390)
Profit/(loss) before taxation 4,342 (44) (426) 397 (140) 4129 - 4,129
Taxaton (1,062) - {134) {54) 24) {1,274} - (1.274)
Profit/(loss) for the year 3,280 {44} (560) 343 {164) 2,855 - 2,855
Segment assets 56,472 1,317 11,014 11,479 3,454 83,736  (20,430) 63,306
Less intercompany receivables {18,064) (2) (1,696) (858) (10) {(20,430) 20,430 -
Add tax assets 109 - 130 107 45 391 - 391
Total assets 38,617 1,315 9,448 10,928 3,489 63,697 - 63,697
Segment habilities 21,685 1,380 10,510 8,379 4,503 46,457 (20,430) 26,027
Less intercompany payables {100) (1,259) (7,.873) (7.669) (3,529) (20,430 20,430 -
Add tax latihhies 813 - 65 23 - S0 - 201
Total habihties 22,398 121 2,702 733 974 26,928 - 26,928
Other segment items
Capital expenditure 3,147 7 1.228 110 14 4,506 - 4,506
Depreciation 2,833 15 670 526 16 4,080 - 4,060
Net foreign exchange on
intercompany loans (96) - - - - (96) - (96)
Amortisation of intangible assets 263 - - o4 33 390 - 380
Share-based payment - charge to
Statement of Comprehensive Income
{note 22) 51 - - - - 51 - 51

All transactions between Group companies are on normal commercial terms and an arm’s length basis
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3 FINANCE (COSTS)/INCOME
Group Company
2012 2001 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Finance costs
Interest expense on bank borrowings (774) (818) - 7)
Interest expense on intercompany borrowings - - {234) (221)
Interest expense on finance leases (5) (8} - -
(779) (826) (234) (228}
Finance income
Bank interest 26 64 - -
Interest income on intercompany loans - - 1756 174
26 54 175 174
Net finance {costs)/income (753) (762) (59) (54)
4 PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
The following items have been ncluded in amving at profit before taxation
Staff costs (note 23) 10,276 9,643 923 928
Inventories
- Cost of Inventories recognised as an expense {included In cost of sales) 27,704 28,468 - -
- Wnite down release/(charge) 25 (102) - -
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
- Owned assets 3,889 4,036 35 43
- Under finance leases 25 24 - -
Profit on disposal of assets - 2 - -
Other operating lease rentals payable
- Plant and machinery 169 183 - -
- Property 395 362 - -
Repairs and mantenance expenditure on property, plant and equipment 214 198 - -
Research and development expenditure 1,635 1,738 - -
Foreign exchange losses
- On trading transachions and ineffective hedges 255 174 - -
Imparrment of trade recevables 187 52 - -
Other operating expenses/(income)
- Foreign exchange on trading transactions 273 99 - -
- Net mpact of foreign exchange on intercompany loans 145 {96) - -
- Movement on far value of neffective hedge (18) 75 - -
- Share-based payment charge 262 51 144 166
— Amortisation of intangible assets 392 390 - -
1,054 519 144 166
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Services provided by the Company’s auditors and network firms

During the year the Group (including its overseas subsidianes} obtamed the foliowing services from the Company’s auditors and network
firms as detaled below

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Fees payable to the Company’s audrtors for the audit of parent company and
consolidated accounts 87 a0 15 12
Fees payable to the Company's auditors and its Associates for other
senvices
— The auditing of accounts of subsidiaries of the Company pursuant to
legistation 36 50 - -
— Other services pursuant to legisiation 39 18 26 19
Services relating to taxation 30 34 5 10
192 183 46 41

In the current financial year the level of non audit fees was well within the 1 1 ratic to audit fees as per Audit Committee policy

5 TAXATION
Analysis of tax charge n the year

Group Company
2012 201 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'000 £000
Current tax
- UK taxation 643 1,014 36 20
adjustments n respect of prior years (30) 7 3 7
— overseas taxation 491 1 {46) (52)
adjustments in respect of prior years - 165 - 165
1,104 1,187 (13) 140
Deferred tax (note 20}
— current year (145) 4 @ (5)
— overseas taxation 127 48 - -
- adjustments In respect of prior years (261) - - -
(279) 87 (9) (5)

Total tax charge to the profit before tax 825 1,274 (22) 135
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The tax for the year differs to the standard rate of corporation tax n the UK (26%) Any differences are explained below

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 201

£'000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000
Profit before taxation 3,989 4,129 2,199 3,917
Profit on ordinary actmties multipled by rate of Corporation tax in UK of 26%
(2011 - 28%) 1,037 1,156 572 1,097
Effects of
Adjustments to tax in respect of pnor years 231 172 (3) 172
Incoma not taxable - - {502) {1,031)
Dnfference on overseas rates of tax 2 20 10 4
Impact of overseas losses not recognised - 85 - -
Re-measurement of deferred tax - change in UK tax rate to 24% {18) (15) 13 (t2)
Other 95 {124) {112) {95)
Total taxation 825 1,274 (22) 135

In addition to the change n rates of corporation tax to 26% from 1 Apnil 2011 disclosed above a number of further changes to the UK
carporation tax system were announced n the March 2012 UK Budget Statement Legislation to reduce the main rate of corporation tax
from 26% to 24% from 1 Apnl 2012 1s expected to be included in the Finance Act 2012 Further reductions to the man rate are proposed
to reduce the rate by 1% per annum to 22% by 1 April 2014 These further changes have not been substantively enacted at the balancs
sheet date and, therefore, are not included in these financial statements

6. DIVIDENDS
Group and Company
2012 2011
£'000 £'000
3 3p final paid per share in relation to year ended 31 March 2011 (2011 - 5 Op paid in relation to year
ended 31 March 2010) 1,267 1,897
1 7p mtenm paid per share i relation to year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 - 1 7p pard in relation to year
ended 31 March 2011) 665 652
1,932 2,549

In addttton, the directors are proposing a final dvidend in respect of the financial year ended 31 March 2012 of 2 Op per share which will
absorb £783,282 of shareholders’ funds to be paid on 21 December 2012 to shareholders who are on the register of members on 23
November 2012
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7 EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share 1s calculated by dividing the earnings attnbutable to ordinary shareholders by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding dunng the year, excluding those held in the employse share trust (note 22} which are treated as cancelled

for diuted earnings per share, the waighted average number of ordinary shares i 1ssue i1s adjusted to assume conversion of all diutive
potential ordinary shares that have satisfied the appropnate performance cntena at 31 March 2012

Reconcihations of the earnings and weighted average number of shares used in the calculat.ons are set out below

2012 2011
Weighted Weighted
average average
number of Per-share number of Per share
Earnings shares amount Earnings shares amount
£'000 000's pence £000 000s pence
REPORTED
Basic EPS
Earnings attributable to ordinary shargholders 3,164 38,626 819 2,855 38,071 750
Effect of dilutive securities
Options - 328 (0.07) - 373 007
Diluted EPS 3,164 38,954 8.12 2,855 38,444 743
UNDERLYING
Earnings attributable to shareholders 3,164 38,626 819 2,855 38,071 7 50
Amortisation of intangibles 392 - 1.01 390 - 102
Net foreign exchange translation adjustments
net of tax 107 - 0.28 (B3} - 018)
Underlying basic EPS 3,663 38,626 948 3,176 38,071 834

Underlying diluted EPS 3,683 38,954 9.40 3,178 38.444 826
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8 GOODWILL

GROUP £ 000
COSsT

At 1 Apnl 2011 13,372
Exchange adjustments (313)
At 31 March 2012 13,059

AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Aprl 2011 and 31 March 2012 -

Net book amount at 31 March 2012 13,059
GROUP £ 000
COST

At 1 April 2010 13,416
Exchange adjustments (44)
At 31 March 2011 13,372

AGGREGATE IMPAIRMENT
At 1 Apnl 2010 and 31 March 2011 -

Net book amount at 31 March 2011 13,372

Annual impairment reviews performed have not identified any impairment of goodwill

The goodwill has been allocated to cash-generating units and a summary of carrying amounts of goodwill by gecgraphical segments
{representing cash-generating units} at 31 March 2012 1s as follows '

Rest of
UK UsA Spain Italy Europe Total
GROUP £ 000 £ 000 £ coo £ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 31 March 2012 3,992 8 3,990 4,526 543 13,059
At 31 March 2011 3,992 8 3,990 4,807 575 13,372

Goodwill aliocated to the above cash-generating units of the Group has been measured based on synergtes each geographical segment
15 expected to gain from the business combination

The key assumptions in the valug in use calculations

- Budgeted revenue growth was based on expected levels of actnty given results to date, together with growth based upon internal
wmprovements, marketing initiatives, and expected economic and market conditicns

-~ Budgeted operating profit was calculated based upon management's expectation of operating costs appropnate to the growing
busmess

- Therelative nsk adjusted (or ‘beta’) discount rates applied to reflect the nsk inherent in hobby based product companies In determining
the nsk adjusted discount rate, management has applied an adustment for nsk of such companes in the ndustry on average
determined using the betas of comparable hobby based product companies

The forecasts are based on approved budgets for the year ending 31 March 2013 Subsequent cash flows have been increased in line
with histonc focal temtory gross domestic product For cash flows after 5 years, growth ts no higher than long-term growth rate for each
country The cash flows were discounted using a pre-tax discount rate of 11% (2011 - 12%) which management believes I1s appropnate
for all temtones  The Itallan business i1s expected to grow strongly in the year March 2013, but if revenue growth were limited to 8% in that
year, the recoverable amount would be equal to its carrying amount
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9 INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Brand Gustorner Rent free

names lists penod Total
GROUP £000 £000 £000 £'000
ACQUIRED INTANGIBLE ASSETS
COST
At 1 Aprl 2011 5,001 1,452 36 6,489
Exchange adjustments (102) (28) 3 (131)
Disposals - - {33) 33)
At 31 March 2012 4,899 1,426 - 6,325
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 Apnl 2011 1,057 576 36 1,669
Charge for the year 248 144 - 392
Exchange adjustments {34) (18) )] {53)
Disposals - - (33) {33)
At 31 March 2012 1,271 704 - 1,975
Net book amount at 31 March 2012 3,628 T22 - 4,350
COST
At 1 Aprl 2010 5,015 1,455 36 6,506
Exchange adjustments {14) 3 - (7)
At 31 March 2011 5,001 1,452 36 6,489
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
At 1 Aprl 2010 811 432 36 1,279
Charge for the year 246 144 - 390
Exchange adjustments - - - -
At 31 March 2011 1,057 576 36 1,669
Net book amount at 31 March 2011 3,944 876 - 4,820
Net book amount at 31 March 2010 4,204 1,023 - 5,227

All amortisation charges in the year have been charged through other operating expenses
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10 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

fFreehold Plant

iand and and Motor Tools and

buldings equipment vehicles moulds Total
GROUP £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £'000
COST
At 1 Apnl 2011 3,068 5,518 417 44122 53,125
Exchange adjustments {38) (54) )] {495) (591)
Additions at cost - 548 - 3,333 3,881
Disposals - {4 (12) - (16)
At 31 March 2012 3,030 6,008 401 46,960 56,399
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 April 2011 1,210 3,688 235 37,784 42917
Exchange adjustments (7) {(40) ) {389) (439)
Charge for the year 49 478 50 3,337 3,814
Disposals - (3 (12) - (15
At 31 March 2012 1,252 4,123 270 40,732 46,377
Net book amount at 31 March 2012 1,778 1,885 131 6,228 10,022

Freehold Plant

land and and Motor Tools and

buldings equipiment vehicles moulds Total
GROUP £'000 £'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
COST
At 1 Apnil 2010 3,033 4,925 418 40,602 48,978
Exchange adjustments {4} {16) m (60) (81)
Additions at cost 39 616 a8 3,755 4,506
Disposals - 4] (96) (175) (278)
At 31 March 2011 3,068 5518 417 44,122 53,125
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1 Apnl 2010 1,152 3,293 251 34,262 38,858
Exchange adjustments - (5) - 3 @)
Charge for the year 58 407 50 3.545 4,080
Disposals - 7} (66) {26) {99)
At 31 March 2011 1,210 3,688 235 37.784 42,917
Net bock amount at 31 March 2011 1,858 1,830 182 6,338 10,208

Freehold land amounting to £786,000 (2011 - £786,000) has not been depreciated
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Assets held by the Group under finance leases have the folowing net book amount

2012 2011

£000 £ 000
COsT 167 167
Aggregate depreciation (11} {46)
Net book amount 96 121

Assets held by the Group under finance leases are motor vehicles

The Group has taken advantage of the exemption under IFRS 1 to use the valuation of certain land and buldings at the date of transition

to IFRS as deemed cost Al other assets are stated at cost
All depreciation charges in the year have been charged through other operating expenses

Freehold Plant

tand and and

buildings equipment Total
COMPANY £ 000 £ 000 £°000
COSsT
At 1 Apnl 2011 2,428 4 2,432
Additions - - -
At 31 March 2012 2,428 4 2,432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
At 1t Apnl 2011 1,084 4 1,088
Charge for the year 35 . 35
At 31 March 2012 1,119 4 1,123
Net book amount at 31 March 2012 1,309 - 1,309

Freehold Plant

land and and

buldings egquipment Total
COMPANY £ 000 £ 000 £'000
COST
At 1 Apnl 2010 2,428 4 2,432
Additions - - -
At 31 March 2011 2,428 4 2,432
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATICN
At 1 Apnl 2010 1,041 4 1,045
Charge for the year 43 - 43
At 31 March 2011 1,084 4 1,088
Net book amount at 31 March 2011 1,344 - 1,344
Net book amount at 31 March 2010 1,387 - 1,387

The Company does not hold any assets under finance leases
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COMPANY
The movements n the net bock value of Interests In subsidiary undertakings are as follows
Interests n Loans to
subsichary subsidiary
undertakings undertakings
at valuation at cost Total
£ 000 £ 000 £'000
At 1 Apnl 2011 27,993 7.179 35172
Capuital contnbution relating to share-based payment 118 - 118
Net increase in loans to subsidiary undertakings - 1,311 1,311
At 31 March 2012 28,111 8,490 36,601
At 1 Apnl 2010 28,108 5,650 33,758
Capital contribution relating io share-based payment (115) - (115}
Net increase 1n loans to subsiciary undertakings - 1,529 1,528
At 31 March 2011 27,993 7179 35172

Interest was charged on loans to subsidiary undertakings at Sterling 3-month Libor + 3 6%

Loans are unsecured and exceed five years maturity

PRINCIPAL GROUP SUBSIDIARY UNDERTAKINGS

Detalts of the pnncipal subsidiary undertakings of the Company, which are included in the consolidated financial statements, are set out
below Homby Hobhies Limited and Hornby Esparia S A are engaged in the development, design, sourcing and distribution of models
Homby Amerca Inc, Homby ltala sri, Homby France SAS and Homby Deutschland GmbH are distnbutors of models

Proporhion of nominal
value of issued shares held

Country of Dascnphon of Group Company
ncorporation shares held % %
Homby Hobbies Limited United Kingdom Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby Amenca Inc USA Ordinary shares 100 100
Hornby Espana S A Span Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby ltala sl laly Crdinary shares 100 100
Horby France SA S France Ordinary shares 100 100
Homby Deutschland GmbH Germany Crdinary shares 100 100
12 INVENTORIES
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2013
£'000 £ 000 £'000 £'000
Raw matenals 354 270 - -
Work n progress 39 58 - -
Firushed goods 17,474 15,885 - -
17,867 16,213 - -
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13 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

Group Coempany

2012 2011 2012 2011
21000 £'000 £'000 £ 0g0

CURRENT
Trade recevables ' 11,608 11,996 - -
Less prowvision for impairment of recewvables (230) (195) - -
Trade recenvables — net 11,378 11,801 - -
Cther receivables 400 511 - -
Prepayments 1,391 1,336 33 38
13,169 13,648 33 38

Concentrations of credit nsk with respect to trade recevables are imited due to the Group's customer base being large and unrelated and
deemed adequate Credit insurance policies are In place in Hornby Hobbies Limited, Hormby America Inc , Hornby Espana S A, Hormby
Itala s r |, Horby France S A S and Homby Deutschiand GrmbH covering trade recewables at 31 March 2012 to the value of £8 @ million
(2011 - £9 2 millon)

Gross trade recevables can be analysed as follows

2012 201

£'000 £ 000
Fully performing 9,252 10,288
Past due 2,078 1,480
Imparred 278 228
Trade receivables 11,608 11,996

As of 31 March 2012, trade recevables of £2,078,000 (2011 - £1,480,000) were past due but not imparred These relate to a number of
independent custormers for whom there 1s no recent history of default The ageing analysis of these trade recevables I1s as follows

2012 2011

£'000 £000

1-120 days 1,946 1,412
>120 days 132 68
2,078 1,480

As of 31 March 2012, trade recevables of £278,000 (2011 - £228,000) were mparred and provided for The amount of provision was
£230,000 (2011 - £195,000) as of 31 March 2012

Signrficant financial difficutties of the customer, probability that the customer will enter bankruptcy or financial reorgarisation are considered
indications that the trade receivable 1s impaired

The ageing of these recevables 1s as follows

2012 20M

£'000 £ 000

1-120 days 37 12
> 120 days 241 216

278 228
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Movements on the Group provision for impairment of trade recewvables are as follows

2012 2011

£'000 £ 000

At 1 Apnl 195 284
Provision for recevables impairment 187 52
Recewvables wntien off dunng the year as uncaollectible {145) (138)
Exchange adjustments 7 3)
At 31 March 230 195

The charge relating to the increase in provision has been included in ‘admenistrative expenses’ In the Statement of Comprehensive Income

The carrying amounts of the Group and Company trade and other recevables are denominated in the following currencies

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £°000 £ 000
Sterling 7,206 7,875 33 38
Euro 5174 5,113 - -
US dollar 570 512 - -
HK dollar 219 148 - -
13,169 13,648 33 38
14 CASH AND EQUIVALENTS
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
2000 £'000 £'000 £'000
Cash at bank and in hand 1,952 4,952 2 1
15 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Group Company
2012 2011 2012 201
£'000 £'000 £000 £'000
CURRENT
Trade payables 5,047 6,590 - -
Gther taxes and social secunty 1,198 1,018 18 18
Other payables 2,332 2,127 - -
Accruals 1,245 1,524 70 114
9,822 11,259 88 132
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16 PROVISIONS

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2013

£'000 £ 000 £°000 £000
Sales returns
At 1 Apnl 413 331 - -
Charge to Statement of Comprehensive Income 649 933 - -
Utilised in the year (738) (911) - -
At 31 March 324 413 - -

Prowvision s made for future sales retums based on histoncal trends The prowision 1s expected 1o be utiised within one year from the
balance sheet date

17 CURRENT TAX ASSETS & LIABILITIES

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£°000 £'000 £'000 £000
Current tax assets
Corporation tax recoverable — Overseas 61 282 9 130
Current tax habilities
UK Corporation tax liability 324 512 36 20
Overseas Corporation tax liability 381 52 209 -
705 564 245 20
18 BORROWINGS
Group Campany
2012 20114 2012 2011
£'000 £'000 £000 £ 000
Secured borrowing at amortised cost
Bank overdrafts 361 555 - -
Bank loan 7,902 10,479 - -
Finance leases 99 128 - -
Loan from subsichary undertakings - - 5,018 5,331
8,362 11,162 5,018 5,331
Total borrowings
Amount due for settlement withun 12 months 3,474 3,136 - -
Amount due for settlement after 12 months 4,888 8,026 5,018 5,331
8,362 11,162 5,018 5,331

The Group compled with all loan covenants dunng the year The Company borrowings are denominated in Sterling
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Analysis of borrowings by currency

Sterfing Euros Total
Group €000 £ 000 £'000
31 March 2012
Bank overdrafts - 361 361
Bank loan 7.500 402 7,902
Finance leases g9 - 99
7,599 763 8,362
31 March 2011
Bank overdrafts - 555 555
Bank loan 10,000 473 10,479
Finance leases 128 - 128
10,128 1,034 11,162

The other principal features of the Group's borrowings are as follows

At 31 March 2012 the Group had a revolving crediit Tacility of £10 milion expinng August 2015 and a S-year fixed term loan agreement of
£12 milion with repayments scheduled to July 2014 {£7 5 milion as at 31 March 2012) The {future interest rates of these facilities are Libor
+ 2 5% for the revolving credit facility and Libor + 3 6% for the fixed term loan

The average effective interest rate on bank overdrafts approximated to 3 63% (2011 - 3 85%) per annum and 1s determined based on
1 0% above 3-month Libor

Undrawn borrowing facihities

At 31 March 2012, the Group had available £10 6 millon: (2011 - £10 4 milien) of undrawn committed borrowing facilities in respect of
which all conditions precedent had been met In addrtion, European subsidiartes had available £1 6 million (2011 - £1 4 milon) of undrawn
mport credit ine faciliies that could be obtained with secunty being given aganst trade recewvables

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
The Group's policties and strategies in relation to nsk and financial instruments are detaled in note 1

Assets Liabilies

2012 2011 2012 2011
Group £1000 £ 000 £'000 £000
Carrying values of dervative financial instruments
Foreign exchange collar - - (1,821) (2,552)
Forward foreign currency contracts — cash flow hedges 104 93 (120) (299)
Interest rate swap - cash flow hedge - - (214) (342)

104 93 (2,155) {3,193)

The hedged forecast transactions denominated in foreign currency are expected to occur at vanous dates duning the next 12 months
Gans and losses recognised in reserves on forward foreign exchange contracts as of 31 March 2012 are recognised in the Statement of
Changes in Equity n the penod or penods dunng which the hedged forecast transaction affects the Statement of Comprehensive Income,
which is within 12 months from the balance sheet date
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At 31 March 2012 outstanding forward currency cantracts were as follows

2012 2011

000's 000s

Hong Kong $ 156,776 167,676
uss 6,732 4 473
Euros - a08

The notional principal amount of the cutstanding interest rate swap contract at 31 March 2012 was £3 0 millon (2011 - £4 0 milhon)
At 31 March 2012, the interest rate swap fixes the interest rate on £3 0 millon of the bank loan disclosed in note 18 to 6 22% The loss
recogrised in the nterest rate swap included n the hedging reserve as of 31 March 2012 will be continuously released to the Statement of
Comprehensive iIncome untik the matunty of the swap The £4 5 milllon (2011 - £6 0 million) remainder of the bank loan disclosed in note
18 incurs interest based on 3-month Libor established quarterly in advance

The total farr value above for forward foreign currency contracts and the interest rate swap compnses £230,000 liabiity (2011 - £637,000
habiity) of which £187,000 hability (2011 - £168,000 liability) has been effectively hedged at 31 March 2012 and therefore charged to
reserves In accordance with 1AS 39 The liability balance of £43,000 (2011 - £61,000 habiity) was the ineffective hedged portion and was
ncluded within operating expenses

In accordance with 1AS 39, the Group has reviewed all contracts for embedded denvatives that are required to be separately accounted
for 1f they do not meet certan requirements set out in the standard No embedded denvatives have been identified

All derwvative financial investments are Lavel 2 1n the Farr Value Hierarchy

Fair values of non-derivative financial assets and liabihities

For the Group and the Company, as at 31 March 2012 ang 31 March 2011, there 1s no difference between the carrying amount and farr
value of each of the following classes of financial assets and llabities, principally due to ther short maturity trade and other recevables,
cash at bank and in hand, trade and other payables and current borrowings Bank deposits attract interest within 0 5% of the ruling market
rate There is no significant difference between the farr value and carrying amount of non-current borrowings as the impact of discounting
Is not significant

The Company has no denvative financial instruments
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Maturity of non-current financial habilities

Bank Finance 2012
loan leases Total
GROUP £ 000 £ 000 £'000
Between one and two years 3,053 25 3,078
Between two and five years 1,669 12 1,681
More than five years 129 - 129
4,851 37 4,888
Bank Finance 2011
loan leases Jotal
£ 000 £000 £ 000
Between one and two years 3,054 62 3,116
Between two and five years 4,674 37 4,711
More than {ive years 199 - 199
7,927 Q9 8,026
2012 2011
Debt Debt
COMPANY £'000 £000
More than five years {note 18) 5,018 5,331
The mmimum lease payments under finance leases fall due as follows
2012 2011
GROUP £'000 £000
Not later than one year 63 34
Later than one year but not more than five 38 101
101 135
Future finance charges on finance leases @ (")
Present value of finance lease habilities a9 128
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Financial Instruments

Interest rate sensitivity
The Group Is exposed 1o interest rate nsk as the Group borrows funds at both fixed and floating mterest rates The exposure to these
borrowings vanes during the year due to the seasonal nature of cash flows relating to sales

In order to measure nsk floating rate borrowings and the expected interest costs are forecast on a monthly basis and compared to budget
usIng management’'s expectations of a reasonably possible change in interest rates

The effect on both Income and equity based on exposure to borrowings at the balance sheet date for a 1% increase in interest rates 1s
£106,000 (2011 - £110,000) before tax A 1% fall in interest rates give the same but opposite effect

Foreign currency sensitvity

The Group 1s primanly exposed to US Dollars, Hong Kong Dollars and the Euro The following table details how the Group's ncome and
equity would increase on a before tax basis, given a 10% revaluation in the respective currencies aganst Sterling and in accordance with
IFRS 7 all other vanables remaining constant A 10% devaluation in the value of Stering would have the opposite effect

The 10% change represents a reasonably possible change in the specified foreign exchange rates in relation to Sterling

Income and Equily Sensitraty

2012 2014

£'000 £ 000

US and HK dollars 815 768
Euros 148 128
963 896

Captal nsk management

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a gong concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure 1o reduce the cost of capital

fn order to mantain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dwvidends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, 1ssue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the geanng ratio The ratic 1s calculated as net debt dwvided by total capital Net debt 1s
calculated as total borrowings as shown in the consolidated balance sheet less cash and cash equwvalents Total capital is calculated as
‘equity” as shown in the balance sheet plus net debt

2012 2011

£'000 £'000

Totat borrowings (note 18) 8,362 11,162
Less

Total cash and cash equivalents (note 14) {1,952) (4,952)

Net debt 6,410 6,210

Tota!l equity 39,181 36,769

Total Capital 45,591 42,979

Geanng 14% 14%
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20 DEFERRED TAX

Deferred tax 1s calculated in full on temporary differences under the hability method using a tax rate of 24% (2011 - 26%)

The movement on the deferred tax account 1s as shown belfow

Group Company

2012 2011 2012 2011

£000 £000 £'000 £ 000
At 1 Apnl 228 141 161 166
Charges(credit) to Statement of Comprehensive Income (note 5)
- origination and reversal of temporary differences (279) 87 9) (5)
Exchange adjustments 2 - - -
Utiisation of trading losses against other tax payable 88 - - -
At 31 March 35 228 152 161

Deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of all tax losses and other temporary differences gmng rise 1o deferred tax assets

because it 1s probable that those assets will be recovered

No deferred tax 1s provided for tax habilities which would anse on the distibution of profits retained by overseas subsidianes because there

18 currently no intention that such profits wili be remitted
The movements in deferred tax assets and labilities dunng the year are shown below

Deferred tax assets and labilties are only offset where there 1s a fegally enforceable nght of offset

Group Company
Accelerated Accelerated
capital capial
Revaluation allowances Other Total Revaluation allowances Total
Deferred tax habilities £ 000 £ 000 £ 000 £'000 £ 000 £000 £7000
At 1 Aprl 2011 166 135 36 337 166 11 177
{Credity/charge to Statement of
Comprehensive Income (7 40 213 236 {17) 1 (18)
At 31 March 2012 149 175 249 573 149 10 159
At 1 Apnl 2010 183 84 14 281 183 13 196
{Creditf/charge to Statement of
Comprehensive Income (17} 81 22 56 {17) @) {19)
At 31 March 2011 166 135 36 337 166 11 177
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Of the total deferred tax hability of £573,000, £5.000 was due within one year for the Group (2011 - £5,000) and £5,000 for the Company
{2011 - £5,000)

Group Cempany

Short term Short-term

ncentive Acgursition incentive

plan ntangibles Other Total plan

Deferred tax assets £000 £ 000 £ 000 £000 £ 000

At 1 Apnt 2011 (35) {74} - (109) {16)
Charge/(credit} to Statement of Comprehensive Income 20 {25) {424} (429) 9

At 31 March 2012 (15) 99) {424) (538) {7}

At 1 Apnl 2010 (68) (48) (24) (140) {30}
Charge/(credi) to Statement of Comprehensive Income 33 {26) 24 31 14

At 31 March 2011 (35) (74) - {109} (16)

Net deferred tax hability

At 31 March 2012 35 152
At 31 March 2011 228 161

The deferred tax hability ansing on the revaluation of freehold land and buldings n 1888 cannot be offset aganst deferred tax assets
Therefore, the deferred tax asset and deferred tax lability at 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 have been recognised separately

2012 2011
Not Not
Recogmised recogmised Recogrused recognised
GROUP - £'000 £'900 £'000 £'000
Deferred tax comprises
Accelerated capdal allowances 175 - 135 -
Other temporary differences {389) - 57 -
Overseas taxation 249 - 36 -
Deferred tax hability 35 - 228 -
2012 2011
Not Not
Recogrised recognised Recognsed recogused
COMPANY £1000 £'000 £000 £'000
Deferred tax compnses
Accelerated capital allowances 10 - 11 -
Cther tming differences 142 - 150 -

Deferred tax habiity 152 - 161 -
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21 SHARE CAPITAL
GROUP AND COMPANY
Allotted, 1ssued and fully paid
2042 2011
Number of Number of

Oraimary shares of 1p each shares £'000 shares £ 000
At 1 Apni 38,464,100 385 38,064,100 381
Allctted under share option schemes 700,000 7 400,000 4

39,164,100 392 38,464,100 385

At 31 March 2012 options granted under the Company’s share option schemes were outstanding as follows

Number of cphons Exercise price Pencd of opion
Date grarted 2012 2011
28 March 2002 - 600,000 76 8p March 2005 - March 2012
19 June 2002 447,500 547,500 83 4p June 2005 — June 2012
0% June 2005 400,000 400,000 201 0p June 2008 - June 2012
847,500 1,547,500

The total number ¢f options outstanding as at the date of this document represent approximately 2 2% (2011 - 4 0%} of the 1ssued share
capital of the Company

If Besolution 12 1s passed at the Annual General Meeting and the Company were 10 exercise the full authority to buy-back approximately
10% of the issued ordinary shares of the Company, such options would represent 2 4% (2011 - 4 5%) of the 1ssued share caprtal of the
Company

22 SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Homby Plc operates three share-based plans — Share Option Scheme ('SOS'), Short Term Incentive Plan ('STIP') and Performance Share
Plan (‘PSP’)

S0S awards

The SOS awards are a reward of share options to executive directors and senior management that vest after 3 years and must be
exercised in a 4 or 7 year exercise window

The awards are subject to a performance measure of Profits before Interest and Tax (‘PBIT') or Profit before Tax ('PBT"} as disclosed by
the Group’s accounts for any of the years ended 31 March 2006, 31 March 2007, 31 March 2008, 31 March 2009 or 31 March 2010
excluding {1} any profit or loss in refation 10 property transactions, {1) any restructunng and abortive due diligence costs and (i) any profits
or losses ansing from businesses acquired by the Group after the date of grant of the Option Some awards are subject to achieving a
PBIT that 1s equal to or greater than £8 milion, or to PBT being equal to or greater than £9 milllon or aggregate PET ior 3 years ending 31
March 2008, 2009 and 2010 being equat to or greater than £32 7 million The awards are equity settled

Activity relating to share options for the year ended 31 March 2012 and 31 March 2011 was as folows

2012 201
Weighted Wesghted
average average
Number exercise price Number exercise price
Qutstanding at 1 April 1,547,500 111.2p 2,178,467 119 7p
Exercised {700,000) 77.7p (400,000) 76 8p
Lapsed - (228,967) 252 0p
Outstanding at 31 March 847,500 138 9p 1,547,500 i112p
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Options were exercised on 2 December 2011 The weighted average share price dunng the year was 125 Sp (2011 - 138 5p}

The following table summanses information relating to the number of shares under option (SOS awards) and those which were exercisable
at 31 March 2012

Exercisable

waightad

average

Waighted axercise

average Options Ontions pnce for

remammng exercisable axercisable options

Total shares contractual at 31 March at 31 March exercisable

under option ife 2012 20M at 31 March

Range of exercise prices Number Months Number Nurmber 2012
£0 70 - £0 80 - - - 600,000 76 8p
£080-2090 447,500 3 447,500 547,500 83 4p
£200-£2 10 400,000 3 400,000 400,000 201 Op
847,500 847,500 1,547,500 138 9p

Performance Share Plan

All Performance Share Plan {PSP) awards outstanding at 31 March 2012 vest only if performance conditions are met Awards granted
under the PSP must be exercised within one year of the relevant award vesting date

The Group operates the PSP for executive directors and senior executives Awards under the scheme are granted in the form of a nil-
priced option, and are satisfied using market-purchased shares The awards vest in full or in part dependent on the satisfaction of speciiied
performance targets 50% of the award vests dependent on TSR performance cver a three year performance penod, relative to the
constituents of the FTSE Small Cap Index {excluding investrment trusts) from the tme of grant, and the remaining 50% vests dependent
on performance aganst earnings per share targets

All plans are subject to continued employment To the extent that such shares in the above plans are awarded to employees below farr
value, a charge calculated in accordance with IFRS 2 ‘Share-based payment’ s included within other operating expenses in the Statement
of Comprehensive Income This charge for the Group and Company amounted to £262,000 in the year ended 31 March 2012 (2011 -
£51,000)

The following table summarises the key assumptions used for grants duning the year

2012 2011

sS0S sTIP PSP* S80S sSTIP PSP

Far vatue (p) - - 102.25p - - 102 5p
Options pncing model used - - Stochastic - - Stochastic
Share pnce at grant date (p) - - 136.4p - - 139 5p
Exercise pnce {p) - - n/a - - na
Expected volatiity (%) - - 48.0% - - 47 0%
Risk-free rate (%) - - n/a - - n/a
Expected option term (years) - - 3 - - 3
Expected dividends (per year, %) - - 0% - - 0%

*Assumptions for TSR component only

Assumptions on expected volatility and expected option tert have been made on the basis of histoncal data, wherever available, for the
penod corresponding with the vesting penod of the option Best estimates have been used where histoncal data s not availlable in this

respect
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STIP awards
The STIP s a reward of shares to executive directors and senior management

Vesting of the awards occurs in equal amounts on the second, third and fourth anmversanes of the award date prowded that the
participant remains employed by the Group These awards are not subject to any performance conditions The awards are equity settled

2012 2011

£'000 £000

At 1 Apnl 180 326
Shares acquired in Company - -
Shares vested (90) {(1486)
At 31 March 20 180

Detais of the Short Term Incentive Plan are given m the Directors’ Remuneration Report on pages 20 to 25
The Employee Benefit Trust acquired no ordinary shares i the year
On 17 June 2011, the second third of the 2008 allocation (57,766 ordinary shares) were vested

At 31 March 2012, a total of 57,766 (2011 - 115,532} ordinary shares are held by the Trust and allotted to the drrectors and senior
management under the plan with a nominal value of £578 {2011 - £1,155) and a market value of £54,878 (2011 - £124,775) The costs of

the plan are bome by Hornby Ple The Trust has waived ds nght to dividends

23. EMPLOYEES AND DIRECTORS

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2014
£'000 £000 £'000 £'000
Staff costs for the Group during the year
Wages and salaries 8,171 7,797 628 613
Share-based payments (note 22) 262 51 144 166
Social secunty costs 1,081 1,047 a3 90
Other pension costs (note 24) 669 723 58 59
Redundancy and compensation for loss of office 93 25 - -
10,276 9,643 923 928
Average monthly number of peopie (ncluding executive directors) employed by the Group
Group Campany
2012 2011 2012 2011
Number Number Number Number
Operations 99 104 1 1
Sales, marketing and distnbution 107 106 1 1
Administration 40 339 3 3
246 249 5 5
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Key management compensation

Group Company
2012 2011 2012 2011
£'000 £000 £'000 £ 000
Salanes and short term employee benefits 2,002 1,893 489 488
Share-based payments 261 100 144 166
Post-employment benefits 244 198 58 59
2,507 2,192 671 713

Key management comprse the indmiduals involved in major strategic deciston making and mcludes all Group and subsidiary directors

A detaled numencal analysis of directors’ remuneration and share options showing the highest pad director, number of directors
accruing benefit under money purchase pension schemes and gains realised on the exercise of share options, 18 ncluded in the Directors'
Remuneration Report on pages 20 to 25 and forms part of these financial statements

24 PENSION COMMITMENTS

The Group operates a defined contribution pension scheme by way of a Stakeholder Group Personal Pension Plan set up through the
Fnends Provident Insurance Group

Alexander Forbes Financial Services Limited 1s appointed as Independent Financial Aduser to work in laison with the Company

The level of contnbutions to the Group Personal Pension Plan for current members is fixed by the Company

The Group pension cost for the year was £669,000 (2011 - £723,000) representing the actual contributions payable in the year and certamn
scheme administration costs The Company pension cost for the year was £58,000 (2011 - £59,000)

25 FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS

Group
2012 2011
£'000 £000
At 31 March capital commitments were
Contracted for but not prowided for 1,879 1,439

The commitments relate to the acquisition of property, plant and equipment

The Company does not have any capital commitments

Contingent Liabilities

The Company and its subsidiary undertakings are, from time to time, parhes to iegal proceedings and claims, which anse in the ordinary
course of business The drectors do not antcipate that the cuicome of these proceedings and clams, ether indmdually or In aggregate,
will have a matenal adverse effect upon the Group's financial position

HMRC are currently performing a review of Homby Hobbies Limited's previously agreed accelerated capital allowances for product tooling
The review 1S ongoing, however were HMRC to overtum the previously agreed treatment there would as at 31 March 2012 be a maxamum
£1 1 milion cash outflow
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26 OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

The total of future minmum lease payments in respect of non-cancellable plant and motor vehicle operating leases faling due are as
follows

2012 2011

GROUP £'000 £:000
Not later than one year 417 489
Later than one year but not more than five years 794 967
More than five years - 108
1,211 1,562

27 RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES
There were no coniracts with the Company or any of s subsidianes existing dunng or at the end of the financial year in which a director
of the Company was matenally interested

The Company recewved management fees from subsidianes of £1,278,000 (2011 - £1,251,000), interest of £175,000 (2011 - £174,000)
and dmvidends from subsidianes of £1,932,000 (2011 - £3,681,000) and incurs interest of £234,000 (2011 - £221,000) on intercompany
borrowings
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If you have sold or otherwise transferred all of your ordinary shares m Hornby Ple, please forward this document as soon as possible to the
purchaser or transferee, or to the stockbroker, bank or other agent through or to whom the sale or transfer was effected for transmission
to the purchaser or transferee of your ordinary shares

NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice 1s hereby given that the thirty first Annual General Meeting of Hornby Plc (the “Company”) will be held at the offices of Berwin
Leighton Paisner LLP, Adelaide House, London Briige, London EC4R 8HA on Thursday 26 July 2012 at 11 00 2 m ior the following
purposes

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass the following resolutions, of which numbers 1 1o 10 (nclusve) will be proposed as ordinary
resolutions and numbers 11 and 12 as special resolutions

ORDINARY RESOLUTIONS

1

~N a0 A

o]

10

To receive and adopt the Company's Annual Report and Accounts for the financial year ended 31 March 2012 together wath the
Report of the Directors and Auditors

To approve the Directors’ Remuneration Report, as set out on pages 20 to 25 of the Company's Annual Report and Accounts, for the
financial year ended 31 March 2012

To declare a final dvidend of 2 O pence per ordinary share of 1 pence each in the capital of the Company (the “Ordinary Shares”)
payable to holders of Ordinary Shares on the register at the close of business on 23 November 2012

To re-elect N A Johnson as a Director
To re-elect A J Morns, who retires by rotation, as a Director
To re-elect M E Rotfe, who retires by rotation, as a Director

To re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, the retinng auditors, as auditors of the Company to hold office from conclusion of the
Annual General Meeting to the conclusion of the next meeting at which accounts are laid before the Company

To authorise the Directors to agree the auditors’ remuneration

That, in accordance with section 366 of the Companies Act 2006 {the “Act”), the Company and all companies that are its subsidianes
at any time dunng the penod for which this resolution has effect be authorised to

(8) make political donations 1o political parbes and/or independent election candidates, not exceeding £10,000 n total,
{b) make poltical donations to political organisations, other than political parties, not exceeding £10,000 i total, and
{c) meur political expenditure, not exceeding £10,000 i total,

provided that the aggregate amount of any such donations and expenditure shalt not exceed £15,000 during the period beginning
with the date of the passing of this resolution and ending on the date of the Company's next Annual General Meeting

For the purpose of this resolution, the terms ‘political donations’, 'poliical expenditure’, 'Independent election candidates’, ‘political
parties’ and ‘political organisations’ shall have the mearing gven to them by Part 14 of the Act

THAT, in place of the equivalent authonty given to the Directors at the last Annual General Meeting (but without prejudice to the
continuing authonty of the Directors to allot shares pursuant to an effer or agreement made by the Company before the expiry of
the authorty pursuant to which such offer or agreement was made), the Directors be generally and unconditionally authonsed in
accordance with section 551 of the Act to allot shares in the Company or grant nghts to subscnbe for or to convert any secunty into
shares in the Company up to a maximum aggregate nomnal amount of £130,000, provided that this authonty shall expire on 25
July 2017 but so that the Company may, before the expiry of such penod, make an offer or agreement which would or might require
shares to be allotted or nghts to subscnbe for or convert secunties into shares to be granted after the expiry of such penod and the
Directors may allot shares or grant nghts to subscribe for or convert secunties Nto shares pursuant to such an offer or agreement as
if this authonty had not expired
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SPECIAL RESOLUTIONS

"

THAT, subject to and conditional on the passing of resolution 10, the Directors be empowered, pursuant to section 570 of the Act,
to allot equity secunties (within the meaning of section 560 of the Act) for cash pursuant to the authonty conferred by resolution 10
asif section 561(1) of the Act did not apply to any such allotment, provided that this power shall be imited to the allotment of equity
secunties

{a) mn connection with an offer of such secunties by way of Rights Issue (defined below), and
{b) otherwise than pursuant to resolution 10 above up 10 an aggregate nominal amount of £18,000,

and that this authonty shall expire at the conclusion of the Company's next Annual General Meeting following the date of the passing
of the resolution, save that the Company may, before such expiry, make an offer or agreement which would or might require equity
secunhies 10 be allotted after such expiry and the Directors may allot equity securities m pursuance of any such offer or agreement as
if this power had not expired

This power applies In relation to a sale of treasury shares as if all references in this resolution to an allotment included any such sale
and in the first paragraph of the resolution the words “pursuant to the authonity conferred by resolution 10" were omitted in refation to
such sale

In this resolution, “Rights Issue” means an offer of equity secunties open for acceptance for a penod fixed by the Directors to holders
of Ordinary Shares in the capital of the Company on the register on a record date fixed by the Directors in proportion as nearly as may
be to the respective numbers of Ordinary Shares held by them, but subject to such exclusions or other arrangements as the Directors
may deem necessary or expedient to deal with any treasury shares, fractional entittements or legal or practical Issues ansing under the
laws of, or the requirements of any recognised regulatory body or any stock exchange in any terntory or any other matter

THAT, subject to and in accordance with Article 9 of the Company's articles of asscciation, the Company be generally and
unconditicnally authonsed to make market purchases (within the meaning of section 633(4) of the Act) of Ordinary Shares on such
terms as the Directors think fit, and where such shares are held as treasury shares, the Company may use them for the purposes set
out in section 727 of the Act, including for the purpose of its employee share schemes, prowded that

{a) the maximum number of Ordinary Shares hereby authonsed to be purchased i1s 3,900,000 being an amount equal to approximately
10% of the Ordinary Shares n 1ssue as at 7 June 2012 {being the latest practicable date pnor to the publication of this notice),

(b) the mimimum price, exclusive of any expenses, which may be paid for an Ordinary Share is 1 pence,
(c) the maximum price, exclusive of any expenses, which may be paid for each Ordinary Share 1s an amount equal to the higher of

() 105 per cent, of the average of the muddle market quotations for an Ordinary Share. as derved from the London Stock
Exchange Daly Official List, for the five business days immediately preceding the day on which the Ordinary Share 1s
contracted to be purchased, and

) the amount stpulated by Artcle 5(1) of the Buy-back and Stabiisation Regulation 2003, and

(d) the authonty hereby conferred shall, unless previously revoked or vaned, expire at the conclusion of the Company's next Annual
General Meeting following the date of the passing of this resolution, or, if earlier, on the expiry of 18 months from the date of the
passing of this resolution {except In relation to the purchase of Ordinary Shares, the contract for which was concluded before the
expiry of this authorty and which will or may be executed wholly or partly after such expiry)

By order of the Board

Kﬁ

Company Secretary

Dated 8 June 2012

Registered office Westwood, Margate, Kent CT9 4JX
Registered in England and Wales with number 01547390
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This notice 1s being sent to all members and to any person nominated by a member of the Company under section 146 of the
Companies Act 2006 to enjoy mformation nghts

Only holders of Ordinary Shares, or therr duly appointed representatives, are entitled to attend, vote and speak at the AGM A member
s0 entitted may appoint (a) proxy/{ies), who need not be (g) member(s), to attend, speak and vote on his/her behalf A member may
appoint more than one proxy, provided that each proxy 1s appointed to exercise the rights attached to a different share or shares held
by him/her A form of proxy 1s enclosed with this Notice and instructions for ts completion are set out on the form

Proxies may only be appointed by completing and returning the form of proxy enclosed with this Notice to the Company’s Registrars,
Capita Registrars Limited PXS, 34 Beckenham Road, Beckenham, Kent BR3 4TU

To be valid a proxy appoiniment and any power of attorngy or other authortty, if any, under wtuch it 1s signed or a duly certified copy of
such power of attorney must reach the office of the Company’s Registrars not less than 48 hours (excluding any part of a day which
18 not a working day) before the time fixed for the AGM or any adjournment thereof Therefore, the form of proxy must be recened by
the Company's Registrars by 11 am on 24 July 2012

Returmn of the form of proxy wilt not preclude a member from attending the AGM and votng n person A vote withheld option i1s
provided on the form of proxy 1o enable you to instruct your proxy to abstain on any particular resolution However, it should be noted
that a “vote withheld” 1s not a vote in law and will not be counted In the calculation of the proportion of votes “For” and “Against” a
resolution If you select “Discretionary” or fall 1o select any of the options, your proxy can vote as he or she chooses or can decide
not to vote Your proxy can also do this on any other resolution that 1s put to the AGM A shareholder must inform the Campany's
registrars in wnting of any termination of the authonty of a proxy

The nght to appoint a proxy does not apply to persons whose shares are held on their behalf by another person and who have been
nominated 1o receive communications from the Gompany in accordance with section 146 of the Comparnies Act 2006 (“Nominated
Persons”) The nights of shareholders in relation to the appointment of proxies can only be exercised by registered shareholders of the
Company Nominated Persons may have a nght under an agreement with the registered shareholder who hold shares on their behalf
to be appainted (or to have someone else appointed) as a proxy Alternatively, if Nominated Persons do not have such a nght, or do
not wish to exercise it, they may have a nght under such an agreement to give Instructions to the person holding the shares as to the
exeraise of voting nghis

The Company, pursuant to Regulation 41 of the Uncertrficated Secunties Regulations 2001, specifies that only those shareholders
on the register of members of the Company as at 11 am on 24 July 2012 (or, If the AGM 1s adjourned, shareholders on the register
of members not later than 48 hours {excluding any part of a day which 1s not a working day) before the time fixed for the adjourned
meeting) are entitled to attend and/or vote at the AGM (or any adjournment thereof} in respect of the number of shares registered In
their name at that time  Subsequertt changes to the register of secunttes shall be disregarded in determining the nghts of any person
to attend and vote at the AGM (or any adjournment thereof)

Copies of contracts of service and letters of appointment between the Directors and the Company will be avaiable for mspection at
the registered offices of the Company and the offices of Berwin Leighton Paisner LLP at Adelaide House, London Brndge, EC4R 9HA
during normal business hours on any weekday {Saturdays, Sundays and public holidays exciuded) from the date of this Notice unti
the conclusion of the AGM, and at the place of the AGM for at least 15 minutes prior to the AGM until its conclusion

Any corporation which 1s a member can appoint one or more corporate representatives who may exercise on its behalf all of its powers
as a member provided that they do not do so in relation to the same shares

In order to faciitate voting by corporate representatives at the AGM, arrangements will be put in place at the meeting so that (i) if
a corporate member has appomnted the Chairman of the meeting as ts corporate representative with instructions to vote on a poll
n accordance with the directions of all of the other corporate representatives for that member at the meeting, then on a poll those
corporate representatives will give voting directions to the Chairman and the Chairman wall vote {or withhold a vaote} as corporate
representative In accordance with those directions, and {1) f more than one corporate representative for the same corporate member
attends the meeting but the corporate member has not apponted the Chawrman of the meeting as its corporate representaive, a
designated corporate representative will be nominated, from those corporate representatives who attend, who will vote on a poll and
the other corporate representatives will give voting directions to that designated corporate representative  Corporate members are
referred to the guidance ssued by the Institute of Chartered Secretanas and Administrators on proxies and cerporate representatives
- http //www icsa org uk/- for further details of this procedure The guidance includes a sample form of representation letter if the
Charrman 1s being appomnted as descnbed in (i} above

Under section 527 Companies Act 2006 members meeting the threshold requirements set cut in that section have the nght to
require the Company to publish on its website a statement setting out any matter relating to (i} the audit of the Company’s accounts
{including the auditor's report and the conduct of the audit) that are to be laid before the AGM, or (i} any crcumstances connected
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with an auditor of the Company ceasing to hold office since the previous meeting at which annual accounts and reports were laid
in accordance with section 437 Companies Act 2006 The Company may not require the members requesting any such website
publication 10 pay its expenses i complying with sections 527 or 528 Companies Act 2006 Where the Company 1S required to place
a statement on a website under section 527 Companies Act 2006, it must forward the statement to the Company's auditor not later
than the trme when it makes the statement avatable on the website The business which may be dealt with at the AGM includes any
statement that the Company has been required under section 527 Companies Act 2006 to publish on a website

A copy of this Notice, and other information regarding the meeting, as required by section 311A Companes Act 2008, 1s avalable
from www hornby com

You may not use any electronic address provided in this Notice or inany related documents (including the form of proxy) to communicate
with the Company for any purposes other than those expressly stated

Any member attending the meeting has the nght to ask questions The Company must cause to be answered any such question
relating to the business bemng dealt with at the meesting but no such answer need be given if (a} to do so would interfere unduly with the
preparation for the meeting or nvolve the disclosure of confidential information, (b) the answer has already been given on a website in
the form of an answer 1o a question, or {g) it 13 undesrrable in the interests of the Company or the good order of the meeting that the
question be answered

As at 7 June 2012 (being the latest practicable date prior to the publication of this Notice), the Company’s 1ssued sha-e capital
conststs of 39,164,100 ordinary shares, carrying one vote each Therefore, the total voting nghts in the Company as at 8 June 2012
are 39,164,100
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2012 2011 2010 2009 2008
£1000 £ 000 £000 £ 000 £ 000
Turnover 64,447 83,372 63.863 60,803 54,949
Profit on ordinary activities before taxation 3,989 4,128 5,215 B6.121 9,017
Taxation (825) (1,274) {1,530) (1.909) (2.840)
Profit on ordinary activitties after taxation 3,164 2,856 3,685 4,212 6,077
Assets employed
Non-current assets 27,969 28,509 28,803 29,903 20,812
Net current assets 16,673 16,623 18,653 9,133 11,037
Non-current borrowings (4,888) {8.026) (10,547) {7.181) (41)
Deferred tax liabilities (573) {337) (281) {301) (346)
Net assets 39,181 36,769 36,628 31,564 31,462
Total capital employed 39,181 36,769 36,628 31,554 31,462
f£amings per share
- basic B2p 7 5p 9 8p 112p 16 2p
- diluted B1p 7 4p 9 6p 110p 15 6p
Dwmidend per share {net) 37p 50p 50p 27p 8 5p
Net assets per share 100 Op 957p 96 2p 83 1p 82 8p
SHAREHOLDERS'

HORNBY WELCOMES CONTACT
WITH ITS SHAREHOLDERS
IF YOU HAVE QUESTIONS OR
ENQUIRIES ABOUT THE GROUP OR
ITS PRODUCTS, PLEASE CONTACT

A ] MORRIS, FINANCE DIRECTOR
HORNBY PLC
WESTWOOD

MARGATE
KENT CT9 4JX




